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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 20th July, 2018 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 06th July, 2018.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer (Acting).

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2018.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Note .-  	(i) Amaradeva Aesthetic  and Research Centre   Bill was  published as a supplement to the  Part II of the  Gazette of the Democratic  
Socialist   Republic of Sri Lanka of June 14, 2018.
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Sri Lanka of June 22, 2018.
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Appointments, &c., by the President
No. 544 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REG 1037.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Retirement  approved  by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the undermentioned Senior officer from the Sri Lanka 
Army Volunteer Force with effect from 02nd March, 2018:-

Colonel  Chandrasiri Upali Gamaethige, (O/2849).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd May, 2018.

06-1022

No. 545 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/RET/1043.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Retirement  approved  by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Sri Lanka 
Army Volunteer Force with effect from 17th December, 
1995:-

Lieutenant Colonel Anil Sumedha Amarasekera, VIR 
(O/1788).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1019

No. 546 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REt/1050.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Confirmation of Rank and Retirement approved  
by His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

HIS Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of Rank of the under mentioned Officer in the 
rank of Major with effect from 01st December, 2017:-

Temporary Major Warnakulasooriya Neroshan Pradeep 
Sanjeewana Thamel, SLNG (O/5004);

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the 
Retirement of the under mentioned Officer from the 
Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 02nd 
December, 2017:-

Major Warnakulasooriya Neroshan Pradeep 
Sanjeewana Thamel, SLNG (O/5004).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1026

No. 547 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REt/1049.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Confirmation of Rank and Retirement approved  
by His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

HIS Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of Rank of the undermentioned Senior Officer 
in the rank of Major with effect from 31st July, 2018:-
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Temporary Major Labuna Peduru Prasanna Ranjith, 
SLNG (O/5474);

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the 
Retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from 
the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 01st 
August, 2018:-

Major Labuna Peduru Prasanna Ranjith, SLNG 
(O/5474).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1027

No.  548 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/RET/1045.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Retirement  approved  by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 16th July, 2018:-

Captain (Quartermaster - General Duties)  Ranjith 
Rathnayake, SLEME (O/8503).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1020

No.  549 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REG/8364.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Resignation of Commission approved  by His 
Excellency the President

resignation of commission

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Lady Officer from 
the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 01st 
August, 2018:-

Captain Edirisinghe Arachchilage Nilanthi Wasana 
Edirisinghe, SLAWC (O/8364).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1023

No.  550 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REt/1046.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Retirement  approved  by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 01st October, 2018:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster - General Duties)  Witharamalage 
Jayantha, SLRC (O/6282).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1021
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No.  551 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REg/10211.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Resignation of Commission approved  by His 
Excellency the President

resignation of commission

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri 
Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 24th June, 
2018:-

Lieutenant Hewage Ravindranath Tharanga, SLAGSC 
(O/10211).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1025

No.  552 of 2018

MOD/DEF/07/01/AVF/REg/10213.

SRI  LANKA   army — volunteer Force

Resignation of Commission approved  by His 
Excellency the President

resignation of commission

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri 
Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 25th June, 
2018:-

Lieutenant Hewawasam Pathirajage Nishantha 
Pathiraja, SLAGSC (O/10213).

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1024

No. 553 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/322.

SRI  LANKA   navy — regular naval 
Force

Retirement  approved  by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force of the Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 26th February, 
2018:-

Rear Admiral Kariyawasam Kanaththage Jayantha De 
Silva, RSP, USP, ndc, psc SLN - NRX 0244.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1043/1

No. 554 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/322.

SRI  LANKA   navy 

Transfer from the Regular Naval Force to the 
Regular Naval Reserve

HIS Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force to the Regular Naval Reserve of the Sri Lanka Navy 
with effect from 26th February, 2018:-

Rear Admiral Kariyawasam Kanaththage Jayantha De 
Silva, RSP, USP, ndc, psc SLN - NRX 0244.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1043/2
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No.  555 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/4/3/0320.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Rear Admiral with effect from 
26th February, 2018:-

Commodore Wavitavidanalage Don Ernest Meril 
Sudarshana, RSP, USP, ndu, psc SLN - NRX 0320.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
04th April, 2018.

06-1036

No.  556 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/4/3/0253.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Confirmations approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Rear Admiral with effect from 11th July, 
2018:-

Commodore [Temporary Rear Admiral]  Muditha 
Munipriya Hirimbura Gamage, RSP, USP, psc SLN - NRX 
0253.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
09th May, 2018.

06-1038

No. 557 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/328.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval  
force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force of the Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 02nd April, 
2018.

Commodore (SH) Kankanam Durage Ananda Jagath 
Siriwardana, USP SLN - NRH 0677.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1042/1

No.  558 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/328. 

SRI  LANKA   navy

Transfer from the Regular Naval Force to the 
Regular Naval Reserve

HIS Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force to the Regular Naval Reserve of the Sri Lanka Navy 
with effect from 02nd April, 2018:-

Commodore (SH) Kankanam Durage Ananda Jagath 
Siriwardana, USP SLN - NRH 0677.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1042/2
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No. 559 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/5/4.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Commodore (NP) with effect from 
01st April, 2018:-

Captain (NP)  Hollupathirage Anura Piryashantha 
Caldera, USP, psc SLN - NRP 0542.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd May, 2018.

06-1029

No. 560 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/324.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval  
force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force of the Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 15th April, 
2018.

Commander (L)  Manju Sameera Jayasekara, SLN - 
NRL 0868.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1044/1

No.  561 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/324.

SRI  LANKA   navy 

Transfer from the Regular Naval Force to the 
Regular Naval Reserve

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Transfer 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force to the Regular Naval Reserve of the Sri Lanka Navy 
with effect from 15th April, 2018.

Commander (L)  Manju Sameera Jayasekara, SLN - 
NRL 0868.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1044/2

No.  562 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/329.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval  
force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force of the Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 31st May, 
2018.

Commander (NP)  Suresh Hemantha Brahmana, SLN - 
NRP 0889.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1046/1
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No. 563 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/329.

SRI  LANKA   navy

Transfer from the Regular Naval Force to the 
Regular Naval Reserve

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Transfer 
of undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Naval 
Force to the Regular Naval Reserve of the Sri Lanka Navy 
with effect from 31st May, 2018.

Commander (NP)  Suresh Hemantha Brahmana, SLN - 
NRP 0889.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1046/2

No. 564 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/8/7/2784.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Surgeon Lieutenant-Commander with effect 
from 05th December, 2017:-

Surgeon Lieutenant  Wickramasinghe Arachchige 
Nirmala Wickramasinghe, NRM 2784, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd May, 2018.

06-1032

No. 565 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/330.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval 
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Retirement 
of undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force 
of Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 01st March, 2018 and 
transfer to the Regular Naval Reserve on the same date.

Lieutenant Commander (AOH) Samarakoon 
Mudiyanselage Abeyrathne Samarakoon, NRW 1473, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
05th March, 2018.

06-1035

No. 566 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/08/07.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Confirmation approved by His Excellency the 
President

Lieutenant Commander (E) with effect from 10th March, 
2018:-

Lieutenant (E) [Temporary Lieutenant Commander (E)]
Pavithra Dananjana Kodippiliarachchi, NRE 2422, SLN;

Lieutenant Commander with effect from 27th March, 
2018:-

Lieutenant [Temporary Lieutenant Commander] 
Watagoda Gedara Asantha Chandrapala Watagoda, 
NRX 2349, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1034
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No. 567 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/338.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular naval 
force

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval 
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Retirement 
of undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force 
of Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 01st June, 2018 and 
transfer to the Regular Naval Reserve on the same date.

Lieutenant Commander (S) Godakanda Arachchige 
Jeewananda Wijesundara, NRS 1201, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1030

No. 568 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/08/07.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander with 
effect from 13th November, 2017:-

Lieutenant Kodithuwakku Arachchilage Rangana 
Anuradh, NRX 2683, SLN

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E) 
with effect from 03rd February, 2018:-

Lieutenant (E), Thiyabarawatta Lekamge Asanka 
Damitha Bandara Lekamge, NRE 2638, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1041

No. 569 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/08/07.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (NP) 
with effect from 21st November, 2017:-

Lieutenant (NP), Kolamba Hewage Damith Tharanga 
Jayathunga, NRP 2496, SLN

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E) 
with effect from 23rd March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (E), Kiriwaththuduwage Don Ishan Udayanga 
Kumara, NRE 2632, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1033

No. 570 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/8/7/2718.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval  
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (L) with 
effect from 14th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (L), Lihinikandu Arachchige Ajith Suranga, 
NRL 2718, SLN;

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (CE) 
with effect from 16th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (CE), Kasakara Dewala Annakkage Dilanka 
Yasas Mihiripenna, NRC 2631, SLN

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
02nd May, 2018.

06-1045
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No. 571 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/08/07.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (E) with 
effect from 16th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (E) Gona Pinuwala Rushan Darshaka, NRE 
2633, SLN.

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (L) 
with effect from 05th May, 2018:-

Lieutenant (L) Kaidail Sumedha Ranjan, NRL 2563, 
SLN.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1037

No. 572 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/08/07.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (LS) with 
effect from 03rd April, 2018:-

Lieutenant (LS) Merennage Savinda Kasun Mahendra 
Dharmapala, NRA 3192, SLN.

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (S) 
with effect from 05th May, 2018:-

Lieutenant (S), Hewa Dikkumburage Hemas Pubudu, 
NRS 2561, SLN.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1039

No. 573 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/8/7.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Temporary Lieutenant-Commander (LS) with 
effect from 03rd April, 2018:-

Lieutenant (LS) Danansuriya Mudiyanselage Anil 
Neelaka Danansuriya, NRA 3193, SLN.

Lieutenant (LS) Jagath Prasanna Amarasinghe, NRA 
3194, SLN.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1040
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No. 574 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/RET/337.

SRI  LANKA   navy—regular  naval 
force

Retirement and Transfer to the Regular Naval 
Reserve approved by His Excellency the President

HIS Excellency the President has approved the Retirement 
of undermentioned Officer from the Regular Naval Force 
of Sri Lanka Navy with effect from 30th June, 2018 and 
transfer to the Regular Naval Reserve on the same date.

Lieutenant (E) Asurasingha Rajamanthrilage Athula 
Jayasiri, NRE 2715, SLN.

By His Excellency’s Command,
	
	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
21st May, 2018.

06-1031

No. 575 of 2018

MOD/DEF/03/02/8/7.

SRI  LANKA   navy—volunteer  naval  
force

Promotion approved by His Excellency the 
President

To the rank of Lieutenant-Commander (VNF) with effect 
from 02nd March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (VNF) Radaliyagoda Kankanamalage Sunil 

Radaliyagoda, NVX 5415. SLVNF;

To the rank of Lieutenant-Commander (VNF) with effect 

from 06th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (VNF) Abeykoon Mudiyanselage Chandana 

Ruwan Kumara NVX 5424, SLVNF;

To the rank of Lieutenant-Commander (VNF) with effect 

from 20th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (VNF) Nanayakkara Liyanage Sujeeka 

Deshapriya NVX 5425, SLVNF;

To the rank of Lieutenant-Commander (VNF) with effect 

from 20th March, 2018:-

Lieutenant (VNF) Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Prasanna 

Janaka Kumara Rathnayaka NVX 5427, SLVNF.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	

	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C,

	 Secretary,

	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,

04th May, 2018.

06-1028

Other Appointments, &c., 
No. 576 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander of 
the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 31st March, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Yamanale Gedara Sarath Anurasiri, 
SLLI (O/8619).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP psc,
	 Lieutenant General,
	 Commander of the Army.

18th November, 2017.

06-959/1
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No. 577 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander 
of the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 18th June, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Gunathunga Nilantha 
Premachandra Rajapaksha, SLAC (O/6857).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP USACGSC,
	 Lieutenant General,
	 Commander of the Army.

28th February, 2018.

06-959/2

No. 578 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander 
of the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 21st June, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Sirithilaka 
Bandara, SLLI (O/7018).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP USACGSC,
	 Lieutenant General,
	 Commander of the Army.

20th March, 2018.

06-959/3

No. 579 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander 
of the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 12th July, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Kapila 
Bandara, VIR (O/8633).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP USACGSC,
	 Lieutenant General,
	 Commander of the Army.

20th March, 2018.

06-959/4

No. 580 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander 
of the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 31st July, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Indika 
Ajantha Gunathilaka, VIR (O/8642).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP USACGSC,
	 Lieutenant General,
	 Commander of the Army.

07th April, 2018.

06-959/5
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No. 581 of 2018

SRI  LANKA   army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of Rank approved by Commander 
of the Army

confirmation of rank

Commander of the Army has approved the Confirmation 
of rank of the under mentioned Officer in the rank of Captain 
with effect from 30th August, 2018:-

Temporary Captain Raigan Koralege Jayasiri, SLNG 

(O/8610).

	 N U M M W Senanayake, RWP RSP USP USACGSC,

	 Lieutenant General,

	 Commander of the Army.

29th April, 2018.

06-959/6

Government Notifications

Registered  General’s  Department

Registration of Place of Worship for Solemnization of Marriages

In pursuance of the Provisions of Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance Chap 112, I, Thelikada Palliyaguruge 
Neil de Alwis, Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that the under mentioned building used as a place of Public 
Christian Worship has been duly registered for the solemnization of marriage therein.

	 Number	 Date of	 Description	 Situation	 Minister of	 Religious
		  Registration			   Proprietor	 Denomination
					     or Trustee	 on whose
						      behalf of the 
						      building in
						      Registered

	 1509	 12.06.2018	 Church of 	 Muthuhenawatta,	 Rev. Fr. Rohan	 Roman
			   Our Lady of	 Meegoda	 de Alwis	 Catholic
			   Lourdes,
			   Dickhetekma

	N eil de Alwis,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3, Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
12th June, 2018.

06-1008/1
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Certificate of Registry of Building

No. of Certificate 1491.

In pursuance of the application and declaration made under Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance Chap 112,  
I, Thelikada Palliyaguruge Neil de Alwis Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that the under mentioned building 
used as a place of Public Christian Worship, described below has been duly registered for the solemnization of marriage.

	 Situation

	 Description	 Village or	 Pattu. Korale	 District	 Proprietors	 Religious
		  Street and 	 or other		  or Trustees	 Denomination
		  Division of	 Division of			   on whose
		  Town	 the District			   behalf of the
						      building in 
						      Registered

	 Church of	 Dickhetekma	 Hewagam	 Colombo	 Rev. Fr.	 Roman
	 Our Lady of		  Korale		  Rohan De	 Catholic
	 Lourdes,		  Divisional		  Alwis 	
	 Dickhetekma		  Secretariat-		
			   Homagama

	N eil de Alwis,
	 Registrar General.

Witness my hand at Battaramulla,
12th day of June, 2018.

06-1008/2

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
S W R D  Bandaranaike  National  Memorial  Foundation

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF  S W R D  BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial 
Foundation (“the Foundation”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the 
statements of income and expenditure, changes in funds and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Board of management (“the Board”) is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (“SLFRS for 
SMEs”), and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Foundation as at 31 
December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (“SLFRS for SMEs”).

Chartered Accountants,
Colombo
21st March, 2018.

S W R D BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December,

Note
2016 2015

Assets
Rs. Rs.

Non-current assets
2Property, plant and equipment 1,040,921,987 1,099,603,954

Leasehold assets 2.3 12,577,495 18,866,250
Work in progress

3
436,406 436,406

Intangible assets 2,580,510 2,468,122
Non-current financial assets 4.1 22,463,065 19,402,677
Total non-current assets 1,078,979,463 1,140,777,409

Current assets
5Inventory 10,077,645 4,672,070

Current financial assets 4.2 9,106,731 8,658,705
Trade and other receivables 6 102,718,021 78,548,820
Deposits, prepayment and advances 7 11,887,514 8,518,096
Short term investments 8 403,079,123 325,904,341
Cash and cash equivalents 9 433,420,846 90,337,037

Total assets
970,289,880 516,639,069

2,049,269,343 1,657,416,478
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Funds and Liabilities
Funds
Capital reserve 925,522 925,522
S W R D Bandaranaike fund (Accumulated fund)

10
1,365,474,131 996,497,341

Specific funds 408,770,353 431,478,806
1,775,170,006 1,428,901,669

Non-current liabilities
11.1Finance lease obligations 10,877,660 15,371,493

Advance received 12 - -
Retirement benefits obligation 13 51,253,741 48,046,269

62,131,401 63,417,762
Current liabilities

14Trade and other payables 132,456,553 100,194,993
Accrued expenses 15 75,017,551 60,213,668
Finance lease obligations 11.2 4,493,832 4,493,832
Bank overdraft 9 - 194,554

Total liabilities

211,967,936 165,097,047

274,099,337 228,514,809
Total funds and liabilities 2,049,269,343 1,657,416,478

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

I certify that these financial statements are prepared in accordance with SLFRS for SMEs.

…………………………………..
Finance Manager

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with SLFRS for SMEs.

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Management:

…………………………………….	 …………………………………….
Chairman	 Board Member

21st March, 2018.
Colombo.

S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December,
Note

2016 2015
Rs. Rs .

Income 16 887,909,185 673,240,299
Direct operating expenses (394,723,627) (341,109,899)

Gross surplus 493,185,558 332,130,400
Other income 17 67,244,564 128,253,005

		  2016	 2015
	N ote	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Administrative expenses (163,565,062) (197,489,435)

Marketing expenses (12,315,735) (2,839,289)
Finance expenses 18 (2,139,509) (6,445,058)

Other expenses 19 (13,433,026) (10,442,665)

Surplus before tax expense 20 368,976,790 243,166,958
Income tax expense - -

Surplus after tax expense 368,976,790 243,166,958

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

S W R D  BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December,

Capital
reserve

Rs.

S.W.R.D.
Bandaranaike

fund
(Accumulated

fund)
Rs.

Capital aid fund
Rs.

Repair and
maintenance

reserves
Rs.

Library
book

donation
fund
Rs.

Total
(Continued)

Rs.

Balance as at 01 January 
2015 925,522 748,668,072 396,355,759 4,164,226 212,377 1,150,325,956
Surplus for the year - 243,166,958 - - - 243,166,958
Utilised during the year - - (10,577,796) - - (10,577,796)

Transfers to accumulated 
fund - 4,662,311 - (4,164,226) (212,377) 285,708

Balance as at 31 
December, 2015 925,522 996,497,341 385,777,963 - - 1,383,200,826

Surplus for the year - 368,976,790 - - - 368,976,790

Utilised during the year
- - (10,577,796) - - (10,577,796)

Transfers to accumulated 
fund - - - - - -

Balance as at 31 
December 2016 925,522 1,365,474,131 375,200,167 - - 1,741,599,820

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

		  2016	 2015
	N ote	 Rs.	 Rs.
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S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the year ended 31 December,
Note

2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Rs. Rs.

Surplus before tax expense 368,976,790 243,166,958

Adjustments for non-cash income and expenses:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 68,020,382 74,803,433
Amortization of intangible assets 450,083 368,377
Interest income (35,547,753) (20,047,533)
Provision for retiring gratuity 7,741,380 6,142,187
Reversal of over provision trade and other receivables (17,512,415) 18,576,073
Reversal of over provision for inventory (5,528,360) (15,435,772)
Reversal/write back of trade, statutory and other payables (6,539,390) (24,480,944)
Capital work in progress - (4,349,448)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13,228,549 15,872,290
Lease interest 1,892,087 2,342,293
Operating surplus before working capital changes 395,181,353 296,957,912

Changes in;
Inventories (5,405,575) (1,520,005)
Trade and other receivables (24,169,201) 33,389,794
Deposits, prepayments, advances and others (3,369,418) 1,176,212
Trade and other payables and accruals 47,065,443 (174,296,049)
Net cash flow from operations 409,302,602 155,707,864

Gratuity paid (4,533,908) (4,961,990)
Net cash generated from operating activities 404,768,694 150,745,874

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income received 35,133,400 18,321,904
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21,983,076) (13,427,594)
Purchase of intangible assets (562,480) (737,500)
Net investments in fixed deposits (77,174,782) (6,274,302)
Net increase in funds (19,171,023) 23,686,956
Proceed from disposal of fixed assets and consumables 32,161,964 15,983,509
Increase in staff loan (3,508,414) (3,238,846)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (55,104,411) 34,314,127

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease rental paid during the year (6,385,920) (6,385,920)
Net cash used in financing activities (6,385,920) (6,385,920)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 343,278,363 178,674,081
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

9
90,142,483 (88,531,598)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 433,420,846 90,142,483
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The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these financial 
statements of the Foundation.

S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.	 Accounting policies

1.1 Reporting entity

The S W R D Bandaranaike Memorial Foundation (“the Foundation”) is established under S W R D Bandaranaike 
Foundation Law No. 2 of 1975 of the National State Assembly. The registered office and principal place of operation is 
situated at Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 07.

Principle activities and nature of operations

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Principle activities of the Foundation are to promote international peace, understanding and co-operation and to promote 
the study and discussion of international problems in the economic, political, educational, cultural and social fields and 
the dissemination of knowledge on international affairs and renting out premises for offices and hiring of the halls for 
public use.

Bandaranaike Center for International Studies

Principle activities of the Centre are to encourage and promote the studies of research into all aspect of international 
relations, international peace law and diplomacy.

1.2 Basis of preparation

	 (a)	 Statement of compliance

		T  he financial statements of the Foundation comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, 
statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in funds, cash flow statement and notes to the financial 
statements.

		B  asis of measurement

		T  he financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. No adjustments have been made for 
inflationary factors in the financial statements.

	 (b)	F unctional and presentation currency

		T  hese financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), which is the Foundation’s functional 
currency.

	 (c)	U se of estimates and judgments

		T  he preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLFRS for SMEs requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the 
basis of making the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only the financial year or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future financial years.

S W R D BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2016

1.3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.

	 (a)	F oreign currency transactions

		T  ransactions in foreign currencies are translated to rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to 
rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation 
are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.

	 (b)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 (i)	 Recognition and measurement

		I  tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

		  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and bringing the assets to 
its working condition.

		  Gains/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other 
income” in the statement of income and expenditure.

	 (ii)		 Depreciation

		  Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income and expenditure on a straight-line method for S W R D 
Bandaranaike Memorial foundation and CHOGM fund over the estimated useful lives of the asset.

		T  he depreciation rate of assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

S W R D Bandaranaike Memorial Foundation

Building
Depreciation rate

2%
Library books 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicle 25%
Furniture and fitting 20%
Conference system 12.5%
Other equipment 20%
Carpet and curtain 33.3%
Crockery and cutlery 20%
Electrical equipment 20%
Linen 12.5%
Container 10%
Roads 10%
Stalls 10%
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CHOGM Fund Assets

Depreciation rate

Hybrid building 3%
SBMEC hall building 2%
PVC covers 50%
Motor vehicle 25%
Furniture and fitting 20%

	 (c)	 Intangible asset

		  Computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and bring to use specific 
software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life of eight years on reducing balance method.

	 (d)	 Leased assets

		  Property, plant and equipment on finance leases, (which effectively transfer to the Foundation substantially the entire 
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items) are capitalized at their cash price and depreciated/
amortized over the period the Foundation is expected to benefit from the use of the leased assets.

		T  he corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a liability.

		T  he interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year is charged to the statement of income 
and expenditure over the period of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability for each period.

	 (e)	 Inventories

		I  nventories are valued at the cost. The cost of inventories is based on the first in first out principle, and includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location 
and condition.

	 (f)	 Investments

		  Short term investments in treasury bills and fixed deposits are valued at amortized cost.

	 (g)	 Trade and other receivables

		  Other receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for bad and doubtful receivables 
based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

	 (h)	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with bank.

		F  or the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call 
with bank, and net of bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included in current 
liabilities.

		  Statement of cash flow

		  Statement of cash flow has been prepared using the indirect method.

	 (i)	 Impairment

		T  he carrying amounts of the Foundation’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.
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		  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

	 (j)	 Liabilities and provisions

		  Liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of 
past events, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits. 
Obligations payable at the demand of the creditors or within one year of the reporting date are treated as current 
liabilities in the statement of financial position. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are treated 
as non-current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

		  A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Foundation has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.

	 (k)	 Specifics funds

		  Where funds are received for use in an identified activity, such funds are held in a specific fund account and 
transferred to the Statement of income and expenditure to match with expenses incurred in respect of that identified 
activity. Unutilized funds are held in their respective fund accounts and included in the Statement of financial 
position until such time as they are required.

	 (l)	 Taxation 
Income 
taxation

		T  he Foundation is exempt from income tax under section 7(e) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

	 (m)	 Employee benefits

	 i.	 Defined benefit plan

		T  he Foundation’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is measured annually using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting 
the estimated future benefit that employee have earned in return for their services in the current and prior period.

		  Gains and losses arising from changes in the assumptions, current service cost and interest are recognized in the 
statement of income and expenditure in the period in which they arise.

		  Provision is made for retirement gratuity for all employees in respect of gratuity payable under the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, No.12 of 1983. The provision is not invested in a fund outside the Foundation. The provision is not 
externally funded, nor has it been valued by an actuary. This item is grouped under noncurrent liabilities in the 
statement of financial position.

	 ii.	 Defined contribution plan.

		  Obligations to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement as incurred. 
The Foundation contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees as Provident Fund and Trust Fund 
contribution respectively.

	 (n)	 Revenue

		  Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and 
the revenue and associated cost incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and turnover taxes.
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	 (o)	 Expenses

		  All expenditure incurred in the operations of the Foundation and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of 
efficiency have been charged in arriving at the Foundation’s surplus for the year.

	 (p)	F inance expense

		F  inance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, bank charges and debit tax. All borrowing cost are 
recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

	 (q)	 Comparative information

		  Where necessary, comparative figures have been rearranged to confirm with the current year’s presentation.

	 (r)	 Events occurring after the reporting date

		  All material post reporting events have been considered and where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have 
been made in respective notes to the financial statements.

	 (s)	 Commitments and contingencies

		  Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and would be confirmed only on 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the Foundation’s control.  
Commitments and contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes to the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December, 2016 2015

2 Property, plant and equipment
Rs. Rs.

Property, plant and equipment - Freehold assets (Note 2.1) 1,007,351,800 1,053,903,109
Property, plant and equipment - CHOGM assets (Note 2.2) 33,570,187 45,700,845

1,040,921,987 1,099,603,954
2.1  Property, plant and equipment - Freehold assets

Cost Balance as at 01 Additions Disposals Balance as at 31
January 2016 December 2016

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Building 945,221,409 - (2,734,442) 942,486,967
Plant and machinery 12,100,000 - - 12,100,000
Motor vehicles 45,404,771 3,195,000 - 48,599,771
Other equipment 16,077,299 1,148,087 (292,600) 16,932,786
Furniture and fittings 46,414,146 4,388,427 (876,141) 49,926,432
Carpets and curtains 3,188,126 - (1,063,500) 2,124,626
Crockery and cutlery 2,814,753 - (2,588,200) 226,553
Electrical equipment 50,928,376 13,251,562 (561,500) 63,618,438
Container 1,215,861 - (254,999) 960,862
Road account 32,717,258 - - 32,717,258
Stalls 16,218,654 - (11,256,259) 4,962,395
Linen 3,262,091 - (3,262,091) -

1,175,562,744 21,983,076 (22,889,732) 1,174,656,088
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Accumulated depreciation Balance as at 01 Depreciation Depreciation on Balance as at 31
January 2016 for the year disposals December 2016

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Building 41,332,890 16,701,877 (60,557) 57,974,210
Plant and machinery 1,360,000 444,306 - 1,804,306
Motor vehicles 32,107,808 4,850,592 - 36,958,400
Other equipment 2,287,538 2,244,679 (62,597) 4,469,620
Furniture and fittings 9,527,964 9,757,891 (194,541) 19,091,314
Carpets and curtains 1,236,616 650,795 (384,042) 1,503,369
Crockery and cutlery 715,383 59,660 (554,274) 220,769
Electrical equipment 13,065,313 14,088,627 (121,658) 27,032,282
Container 983,068 5,419 (27,625) 960,862
Road account 9,777,943 2,548,818 - 12,326,761
Stalls 6,088,020 93,802 (1,219,427) 4,962,395
Linen 3,177,092 33,980 (3,211,072) -

121,659,635 51,480,445 (5,835,793) 167,304,288

Carrying value 1,053,903,109 1,007,351,800

2.2  Property, plant and equipment - CHOGM assets

Cost Balance as at Additions Disposals Balance as at
01 January 31 December

2016 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PVC covers 4,924,369 - - 4,924,369
Block x1/x2/x3/x4 hybrid buildings 7,053,000 - - 7,053,000
Carpets 9,810,129 - - 9,810,129
Electrical equipment 7,079,464 - - 7,079,464
Furniture and fittings 25,980,211 - (3,221,959) 22,758,252
Other equipment 2,899,800 - - 2,899,800
SBMEC-F hall building 4,209,691 - - 4,209,691
Motor vehicles 7,826,002 - - 7,826,002

69,782,666 - (3,221,959) 66,560,707

Accumulated depreciation Balance as at Depreciation Depreciation Balance as at
01 January for the year on disposals 31 December

2016 2016

PVC covers 4,924,369 - - 4,924,369
Block x1/x2/x3/x4 hybrid buildings 365,180 136,488 - 501,668
Carpets 4,206,774 2,801,676 - 7,008,450
Electrical equipment 2,175,460 1,226,004 - 3,401,464
Furniture and fittings 8,172,941 3,953,423 (1,342,483) 10,783,881
Other equipment 891,084 502,179 - 1,393,263
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SBMEC-  hall building 166,700 82,512 - 249,212
Motor vehicles 3,179,313 1,548,900 - 4,728,213

24,081,821 10,251,182 (1,342,483) 32,990,520

Carrying value 45,700,845 33,570,187

2.3  Property, plant and equipment - Leasehold assets

Costs Balance as at Additions Disposals Balance as at
01 January 31 December

2016 2016

Motor vehicle 25,800,000 - - 25,800,000
25,800,000 - - 25,800,000

Accumulated depreciation Balance as at Depreciation Depreciation Balance as at
01 January for the year on disposals 31 December

2016 2016

Motor vehicle 6,933,750 6,288,755 13,222,505
6,933,750 6,288,755 - 13,222,505

Carrying value 18,866,250 12,577,495

2016 2015

3   Intangible assets
Rs. Rs.

Cost
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,426,072 4,426,072
Additions during the year 562,480 -

Balance as at the end of the year 4,988,552 4,426,072

Amortisation
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,957,959 1,589,581
Amortisation during the year 450,083 368,369

Balance as at the end of the year 2,408,042 1,957,950

Carrying value 2,580,510 2,468,122

	 Accumulated depreciation	 Balance as at	 Depreciation	 Depreciation	 Balance as at
		  01 January	 for the year	 on disposals	 31 December,
		  2016			   2016
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Balance as at the beginning of the year 23,182,626 24,772,378
Loan granted during the year 17,985,200 9,673,568
Loan repayment during the year (14,476,578) (12,912,414)
Net change in prepaid staff cost during the year (1,538,321) 1,649,094

25,152,927 23,182,626
Prepaid staff cost 6,417,079 4,878,756
Balance as at the end of the year 31,569,796 28,061,382

4.1  Receivable within a year 9,106,731 8,658,705

4.2  Receivable within one to five years 22,463,065 19,402,677

5 Inventory
Inventory 16,586,631 16,221,979
(-) Provision for inventory (6,508,986) (11,549,909)

10,077,645 4,672,070

6 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables (Note 6.1) 99,597,655 74,198,419
Other receivables - reimbursement (Note 6.2) 2,261,784 3,538,413
Sundry debtors (Note 6.3) 326,010 168,000
Insurance claim receivable - 26,062
Other receivables (Note 6.4) 532,572 617,926

102,718,021 78,548,820

	 4	 Non-current financial assets
		  Staff loan
	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

6.1 Trade receivables
Trade receivables 158,143,285 129,793,272
(-) Provision for doubtful debtors (58,545,630) (55,815,453)

99,597,655 73,977,819

6.2   Other receivables - reimbursement
Other receivables 34,618,530 42,042,736
(-) Provision for rental receivables (32,356,746) (38,504,323)

2,261,784 3,538,413

6.3 Sundry debtors
Other debtors 1,317,748 2,189,679
(-) Provision for other debtors (991,738) (2,021,679)

326,010 168,000

6.4 Other receivables
Other debtors 6,225,614 5,268,549
(-) Provision for other debtors (5,693,042) (4,650,623)

532,572 617,926
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7 Deposits, prepayment and advances
Adavnces to staff 882,245 488,189
Refundable deposit (Note 7.1) 331,004 412,326
Prepayments 3,454,923 2,276,278
Advance payments (Note 7.2) 7,219,342 5,341,303

11,887,514 8,518,096

7.1 Refundable deposit 431,154 512,476
(-) Provision for refundable deposit (100,150) (100,150)

331,004 412,326

7.2 Advance payments 9,961,801 8,083,762
(-) Provision for advance payments (2,742,459) (2,742,459)

7,219,342 5,341,303

8 Short term investments
Fixed deposits 371,682,528 296,618,087
Treasury bills 31,396,595 29,286,254

403,079,123 325,904,341

	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

Fixed deposits in Bank of Ceylon amounting to Rs.215 million has been pledged as security for the permanent bank 
overdraft facility.

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank 433,382,495 90,330,939
Cash in hand 38,351 6,098

433,420,846 90,337,037
(-) Bank overdraft - (194,554)
Net cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purpose 433,420,846 90,142,483

10 Specific funds
Capital aid fund 375,200,167 385,777,963
Maintenance aid fund - -
Repair and maintenance reserves - -
Library book donation fund - -
Sundry security deposit and investment fund - -
S W R D Bandaranaike scholarship fund - -
CHOGM 2013 Year fund 33,570,186 45,700,843
PPNN Seminar - -
UN AT 50 - -

408,770,353 431,478,806

11 Finance lease obligations
Balance as at the beginning of the year 24,213,280 30,599,200
Obtained during the year - -
Paid during the year (6,385,920) (6,385,920)
Balance as at the end of the year 17,827,360 24,213,280
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Interest
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,347,955 6,690,248
Additions during the year - -
Interest charged to income statement (1,892,087) (2,342,293)
Balance as at the end of the year 2,455,868 4,347,955

Present value of minimum lease payment 15,371,492 19,865,325

11.1  Lease payable after one year 10,877,660 15,371,493
11.2  Lease payable within one year 4,493,832 4,493,832

12 Advance received
The Asia Foundation - 774,467
UNFPA - 344,015
World Bank - 681,207
Commonwealth Youth Programme - 309,966
The Asia Foundation - 412,674
Diploma in Migration - 15,000

(-) Write back of advance received
- 2,537,329
- (2,537,329)
- -

13 Retirement benefits obligation
Balance as at the beginning of the year 48,046,269 47,655,802
Provision made during the year 7,741,380 6,142,187
Payments made during the year (4,533,908) (5,612,585)
Reversal of over provision - (139,135)
Balance as at the end of the year 51,253,741 48,046,269

	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

14   Trade and other payables

Trade creditors (Note 14.1) 38,018,636 30,906,903
Other payables 8,439,586 8,180,761
Refundable deposits 3,972,397 3,892,047
Advance reservation (Note 14.2) 82,025,934 57,215,282

132,456,553 100,194,993

14.1 Trade creditors 38,526,001 31,178,154

(-) Write back of trade creditors (507,365) (271,251)
38,018,636 30,906,903

14.2 Advance reservation 82,025,934 58,328,168

(-) Write back of advance reservation - (1,112,886)
82,025,934 57,215,282
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15 Accrued expenses
Statutory payables 1,963,458 1,410,998
Incentive payable 44,179,125 28,506,902
Sundry accrued expenses 6,876,568 2,299,461
Other tax payables (Note 15.1) 15,474,886 23,694,914
Unpaid wages 714,506 679,995
Hire purchase 5,299 5,299
Accountancy fees - finance 400,000 -
Audit fee - accrued expenses 2,601,520 867,340
Telephone payable 414,451 1,259,494
Overtime payable 2,281,529 1,489,265
Petty cash accrued expenses 5,393 -
Laundry expenses 100,816 -

75,017,551 60,213,668

15.1 Other tax payables 21,506,911 23,694,914
(-) Write back of other tax payables (6,032,025) -

15,474,886 23,694,914

16 Income

Hiring income 563,303,069 389,387,900
Exhibition income - 2,162
Rent income 181,383,158 152,642,366
Interest income 35,547,753 20,047,533
Commission income 98,899,383 69,341,118
Language course fee 8,775,822 4,393,583
International relation course fee - 7,649,001
Room revenue - 11,861,934
Food and beverages - 17,914,702

887,909,185 673,240,299

	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

17 Other income
Amortisation of restricted funds 22,708,453 23,684,814
Sundry receipt income 3,555,109 3,731,040
Telephone income 9,846,878 9,234,620
Gain on disposal of assets - 4,756,671
Miscellaneous income 242,355 114,239
Security and investment fund - 44,350
Over provision of other receivables 6,147,577 -
Other income 110,664 5,000,000
Library department 110,757 57,604
Sundry income - 314,031
Rent income - 30,000
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Over provision for slow moving inventory 5,528,360 15,435,772
Over provision for doubtful debtors 11,556,396 -
Staff loan interest - 13,179
Write back of bank gurantee - 5,000,000
Write back of VAT provision - 28,203,728
Write back of accounting fees provision - 250,000
Write back of audit fees - 68,686
Reversal of over provision for retiring gratuity - 139,135
Write back of trade creditors 507,365 271,251
Write back of accrued expenses - 4,894,422
Write back of advance reservations - 1,112,886
Reversal of over provision for VAT penalty - 22,797,125
Write back of advance received - 2,537,330
Write back of TDL 6,032,025 567,124
Foreign exchange gain 898,625 -

67,244,564 128,258,007
18 Finance expenses

Bank overdraft interest - 3,964,895
Lease interest 1,892,087 2,342,293
Bank charges 247,422 137,869

2,139,509 6,445,057
19 Other expenses

Disposal of assets 7,535,915 -
Disposal of scrap items income 5,692,634 4,531,355
Donations 12,919 25,500
Provision for other receivables 191,558 3,905,428
Bad debts - 1,936,033
Payment of specific fund - 44,350

13,433,026 10,442,666

	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

Staff costs 197,825,142 161,977,840
Defined contribution plan cost - EPF and ETF 13,205,298 11,316,679
Defined benefit plan cost - Gratuity 7,741,380 6,412,187
Depreciation and amortization 68,470,465 75,171,810
Auditors’ remuneration 1,350,000 1,157,665

20	 Surplus before tax

The following items have been recognized as expenses in determining surplus before tax:

21	 Related party transactions

21.1	 Transactions with key management personnel

The Foundation considers its member of the Board of Management as key management personnel of the Foundation. 
Compensation paid to key management personnel of the Foundation is as follows:
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Short term benefits - -
- -

22	 Commitments and contingencies

There were no material capital commitments or contingencies as at the end of the reporting period date which need 
to be adjusted or disclosed in the financial statements except the following:

Foundation has obtained permanent bank overdraft facility from the Bank of Ceylon amounting to Rs. 215 Million 
for which, foundation has pledged its short term investements for the same.

23		 Litigations and claims

The following litigations and claims against the Foundation as at the reporting date.

- A former employee of the foundation has filed an action against the Foundation claiming of Rs.150,000 based 
on a termination of the employment with S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation. Presently this 
matter had been fixed for judgment on 04th May, 2018. Further the employee has filed another action against the 
Foundation high Court for not producing video footage for the Labour tribunal which has been fixed for judgement 
on 14th May, 2018.

- A former employee of the foundation has filed an action against Foundation for reinstatement of service. Presently 
this matter had been fixed for Judgment on 31st May, 2018.

	24	 Events occurring after the reporting date

There were no material events that occurred after the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosures in 
the financial statements.

25		 Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Management and authorized for issue on 21st March, 
2018.

	 2016	 2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.

06-989

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
The  DFCC  Bank  PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under section 4 of the recovery of loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC

Board Resolution

Whereas Kalatu Arachchige Samantha Amarasekara of 
Eheliyagoda carrying on business under the name style 
and firm of Clean Park Service Center at Eheliyagoda 
has made default in payments due on Mortgage  

Bond No. 2436/959/2347 dated 21.01.2015, 03.03.2015, 
11.03.2015 attested by N. R. Bandara, N. S. Ranathunge,  
R. J. Wanniarachchie Notary Public and Mortgage Bond  
No. 1023/1036/2369 dated 30.03.2015, 24.04.2015, 
28.04.2015 attested by R. M. H. S. Ratnayake, N. S. 
Ranatunge, R. J. Wanniarachchie, Notary Public and 
Mortgage Bond No. 1282 dated 15.03.2016 attested by  
R. M. H. S. Ratnayake, in favour of the DFCC Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 31st March, 2018 due 
and owing from the said Kalatu Arachchige Samantha 
Amarasekara to the DFCC Bank  PLC on the aforesaid 
mortgage Bond Nos. 2436/959/2347, 1023/1036/2369 and 
1282 a sum of Rupees Six Million Five Hundred Seventy-
nine Thousand and Seventy-nine and cents Forty-five  
(Rs. 6,579,079.45) together with interest thereon from  
01st April, 2018 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees 
Three Million Seven Hundred Sixty-six Thousand Seven 
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Hundred and Twenty-five (Rs. 3,766,725) at the interest rate 
of Seven per centum (7.0%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to 
the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every 
month on the first business day of each month and on a sum 
of Rupees Six Hundred Forty-one thousand Six Hundred 
Fifty (Rs. 641,650) at an interest rate of Seven Decimal 
Five per centum (7.5%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards 
to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every 
month on the first business day of each month And on a 
sum of Rupees One Million Three Hundred and Eighty-two 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Nineteen and Cents Fourteen 
(Rs. 1,382,919.14) at a rate of interest calculated at Twenty-
eight per centum (28%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the recovery of 
loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the land and premises described below 
mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 2436/959/2347, 1023/1036/2369 and 1282 by 
Kalatu Arachchige Samantha Amarasekara be sold by Public 
Auction Dallas Kelaart, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million Five 
Hundred Seventy-nine Thousand and Seventy-nine and cents 
Forty-five (Rs. 6,579,079.45) together with interest thereon 
from 01st April, 2018 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees 
Three Million Seven Hundred Sixty-six Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Twenty-five (Rs. 3,766,725) at the interest rate 
of Seven per centum (7.0%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to 
the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every 
month on the first business day of each month and on a sum 
of Rupees Six Hundred Forty-one Thousand Six Hundred 
Fifty (Rs. 641,650) at an interest rate of Seven Decimal 
Five Per centum (7.5%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards 
to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every 
month on the first business day of each month and on a 
sum of Rupees One Million Three Hundred and Eighty-two 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Nineteen and cents Fourteen 
(Rs. 1,382,919.14) at a rate of interest calculated at Twenty-
eight per centum (28%) per annum or any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with the cost 
of advertising and selling the said land and premises and all 
monies expended and costs and other charges incurred by 
the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants of 
the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the 
recovery of loans by banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 
of 1990.

Description of the property mortgaged 
by mortgage bond Nos. 2436/959/2347, 

1023/1036/2369 and 1282

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 2568 dated 25.03.2004 more correctly on 

26.03.2004 made by M. A. Somaratne, Licensed Surveyor 
(being a portion of land called Pita Asweddume Godella 
(Part of) Welabodawatta and Gedarawatta amalgamated and 
resurveyed Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 336 dated 09.03.1982 
made by K. G. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor) of the land 
called and known as Part of Pital Aswedduma Godella 
situated at Eheliyagoda village in the Grama Niladari 
Division of Mahingoda in the Divisional Secretary's 
Division of Eheliyagoda and in the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits 
of Eheliyagoda in Panawal Korale in Kegalle District 
Sabaragamuwa Province and which allotment is bounded on 
the North by Manannage Kumbura and Pitakoratuwewatta, 
on the East by Pitaaswedduma Godella part, Welabodawatta 
and Gedarawatta Lot 1 in Plan No. 336 dated 27.03.2004 
made by K. G. Fernando Licensed Surveyor, on the South 
by Portion of Pitaassweduma Godella belonging to K. G. 
Siman Perera and on the West by Ratnapura Colombo 
Main Road and containing in extent Nineteen Decimal One 
Perches (0A., 0R., 19.1P.) and registered at the Awissawella 
Land Registry.

“The full and free right liberty and Licence of ingress 
egress and regress way and passage in perpetuity for the 
Mortgagor his visitors engineers contactors architects 
workmen sevants tenants licensees and invitees at all 
times hereafter at their will and pleasure for all purposes 
whatsoever by day or by night to go return pass and repass 
on foot or otherwise however and with or without horses 
cattle or other animals motor cars motor lorries and other 
vehicles of every kind laden or unladen in or along or over the 
roadway hereunder particularly described together with all 
and singular the rights ways advantages and appurtenances 
or usually held used or enjoyed there with and also the full 
and free right and liberty to lay electric cables and overhead 
wires and drainage gas and water pipes and appliances and 
other contrivances of whatsoever kind on in over and or 
along-

All that the allotment of land called and known as 
Manannayakumbura in extent 32 feet in length and 9 feet in 
breadth and situated at Eheliyagoda aforesaid and bounded 
on the North by Depawella and Galwetiya, on the East by 
Depawella, on the South by balance portion of this paddy 
field and West by Colombo Ratnapura Main Road and 
containing in extent Thirty-two Feet (32') in length and Nine 
Feet (09') in breadth registered at the Awissawella Land.

	L akshman Silva,
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-1093
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The  DFCC  Bank  PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under section 4 of the recovery of loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed on the 
30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Mr. Thennaakoon Mudiyanselage Lakshman 
Thennakoon and Mrs. Keeralage Chandralatha of 
Anuradhapura have made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond No. 2773 dated 13.11.2015 attested by  
U. Wijeratne, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 2775 
dated 16.11.2015 attested by U. Wijeratne, Notary Public of 
Anuradapura in favour of the DFCC Bank PLC.

And Whereas there is as at 28th February, 2018 due and 
owing from the said Mr. Thennaakoon Mudiyanselage 
Lakshman Thennakoon and Mrs. Keeralage Chandralatha 
to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds 
bearing Nos. 2773 and 2775 a sum of Rupees Nine 
Million Six Hundred and Forty Thousand and Twenty-
six and cents Nineteen (Rs. 9,640,026.19) together 
with interest thereon from 01st March 2018 to the date 
of sale on a sum of Rupees Three Million Six Hundred 
and Sixty-six Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-six  
(Rs. 3,666,656) at an interest rate of Eight per centum 
(8.0%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime 
Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 
0.5% per annum which will be revised monthly on the 
first business day of each month and on a sum of Rupees 
Two Million (Rs. 2,000,000) at an interest rate of Eight 
Decimal Five per Centum (8.5%) per annum above the 
Average Weighted Prime Lending rate (AWPR) rounded 
upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be 
revised monthly on the first business day of each month 
and on a sum of Rupees Three Million Forty-eight 
Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-two Cents Thirty 
(Rs.3,048,692.30) at an interest rate of Twenty Eight per 
centum (28%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the Land and Building described 
below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid 
Mortgage Bonds bearing Nos. 2773 and 2775 by  
Mrs. Keeralage Chandralatha be sold by Pubic Auction 
by  Messers. Schokman and Samerawickrema, Licensed 
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Nine Million Six Hundred and Forty Thousand 
and Twenty-six and cents Nineteen (Rs. 9,640,026.19) 
together with interest thereon from 01st March, 2018 to 
the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Three Million Six 
Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-
six (Rs. 3,666,656 at an interest rate of Eight Per centum 
(8.0%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime 
Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nerarest 

0.5% per annum which will be revised monthly on the 
first business day of each month and on a sum of Rupees 
Two Million (Rs. 2,000,000.00) at an interest rate of 
Eight Decimal Five per centum (8.5%) per annum above 
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which 
will be revised  monthly on the first business day of each 
month and on a sum of Rupees Three Million Forty-
eight Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-two and Cents 
Thirty (Rs. 3,048,692.30) at an interest rate of Twenty 
Eight per centum (28%) per annum or any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with the 
cost of advertising and selling the said land and premises 
and all monies expended and costs and other charges 
incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the 
convenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of 
Section 13 of the recovery of loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond No. 2773 and 2775

All that allotment of land situated in the village of 
Sinharagama in No. 338 Sinharagama Grama Niladhari 
Division in Wilachchiya Korale North in Nochchiyagama 
Divisional Secretariat Division in the District of 
Anuradhapura of North Centra Province, bounded, on the 
North by Path, on the East by reservation along Road leading 
to Ralapanawa village, on the South by reservation along 
Puttalama Road, on the West by land belonging to RDA, 
containing in extent Two Roods (00A., 02R., 00P.) together 
with buildings and everything else standing thereon.

According to a more recent survey the above land is 
described as follows:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Plan No. 5660 dated 03.11.2012 made by A. M. 
B. Rathnasiri Licensed Surveyor being the land described 
in Grant No. Anu/No/Pra/532 dated 27.11.1995, situated 
in the village of Sinharagama in No. 338 Sihharagama 
Grama Niladhari Division in Wilachchiya Korale North 
in Nochchiyagama Divisional Secretariat Division in 
the District of Anuradhapura of North Central Province, 
bounded, on the North by Path (presently State lands), on 
the East by Road, on the South by reservation along Main 
Road, on the West by land belonging to RDA and State land, 
containing in extent One Rood and Fifteen Decimal Four 
Perches (00A., 01R., 15.4P.) or Naught decimal One Four 
Naught One Hectare (0.1401He) together with buildings 
and everything else standing thereon.

	L akshman Silva,
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-1092
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Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Sampath Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 

amended by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 of 2011

W. R. A. S. Ariyawansha.
A/C No. 0137 5000 0627.

At a meeting held on 26.04.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Wijesundara Ranasinghe Appuhamilage 
Sumith Ariyawansa in the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the 
repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the properties and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated 
by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3736 dated 08th April, 
2011 attested by D. P. L. H. H. Silva, 3418 dated 12th 
December, 2011 attested by R. Alahendra, 1358 dated 
14th May, 2013 attested by C. G. Abeywickrama, 578 
dated 03rd July, 2014 attested by N. D. B. Gamage, 1264 
dated 18th January, 2012 attested by Y. R. M. Costa, 1360 
dated 14th May, 2013 attested by C. G. Abeywickrama, 
1266 dated 18th January, 2012 attested by Y. R. M. Costa, 
576 dated 03rd July, 2014, 986 dated 09th July, 2015, 
1758 dated 17th March, 2017, 804 dated 12th February, 
2015 all attested by N. D. B. Gamage, 2350 dated 
30th December, 2015 attested by C. G. Abeywickrama 
and 1756 dated 17th March, 2017 attested by N. D. 
B. Gamage of Colombo Notaries Public in favour of 
Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 110, 
Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and whereas there 
is now due and owing on the said Bonds bearing Nos. 
3736, 3418, 1358, 578, 1264, 1360, 1266, 576, 986, 1758, 
804, 2350 and 1756 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as 
at 28th March 2018 a sum of Rupees Twenty-six Million 
One Hundred and Fifty-seven Thousand Two Hundred 
and Ninety-eight and Cents Six Only (Rs. 26,157,298.06) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the properties 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as securities 
for the said credit facility by the said Bonds bearing  
Nos. 3736, 3418, 1358, 578, 1264, 1360, 1266, 576, 986, 
1758, 804, 2350 and 1756 to be sold in public auction 
by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for 
the recovery of the said sum Rupees Twenty-six Million 

One Hundred and Fifty-seven Thousand Two Hundred 
and Ninety-eight and Cents Six Only (Rs. 26,157,298.06) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Fifteen 
Million Only (Rs. 15,000,000.00) at the rate of Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Four decimal five per 
centum (4.5%) per annum (Floor rate of 16.5% per 
annum), further interest on a further sum of Rupees Eight 
Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand One Hundred only  
(Rs. 866,100.00) at the rate of Thirteen per centum (13%) 
per annum and further interest on a sum of Rupees Three 
Million Only (Rs. 3,000,000.00) at the rate of Twenty-six 
per centum (26%) per annum from 29th March, 2018 to 
date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said 
Bonds bearing Nos. 3736, 3418, 1358, 578, 1264, 1360, 
1266, 576, 986, 1758, 804, 2350 and 1756 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The Schedules

	1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 15 depicted in Plan No. 4494 dated 31st January, 2003 
made by P. A. K. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Warandagahamandiya together with the soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Tunnana within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Koodaluvila (G. N. Division No. 444D) in the Divisional 
Secretariat of Seethawaka and within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Seethawaka in Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in 
the District of Colombo Western  Province and which said 
Lot 15 is bounded on the North by Lot 19 (Road 20 ft. wide) 
on the East by Lot 14 on the South by Lot 12 and on the 
West by Lot 11 (Drain) and containing in extent Ten Perches  
(0A., 0R., 10P.) or Naught decimal Naught Two Five Two 
Nine Hectares (0.02529 Ha) according to the said Plan  
No. 4494 and registered in Volume/ Folio B 33/35 at the 
Land Registry Avissawella.

Together with the right of way in over and along Road 
reservation depicted in the said Plan No. 4494, Lot 21A 
depicted in Plan No. 4436 made by P. A. K. J. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor and Lots 17 and 25 depicted in Plan  
No. 526 authenticated by the Surveyor General.

Mortgage and hypothecated by under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3736, 3418, 1358 and 578.

	2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 72 depicted in Plan No. 4494 dated 31st January, 2003 
made by P. K. A. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called ‘Warandagahamandiya’ together with the soil, trees, 
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Tunnana within the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of 
Seethawaka, Divisional Secretariat of Seethawaka and 
Grama Niladhari Division of Kadaluwila 444D in the 
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Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo 
Western  Province and which said Lot 72 is bounded on the 
North by Lot 67, on the East by Lot 70 and 71, on the South 
by Lot 76 and on the West by Lot 73 and containing in extent 
Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 4494 and registered in Volume/Folio N 457/20 at the 
Land Registry Avissawella.

Together with the right of way over and along,
	
Lot 21A in Plan No. 4436
Lots 17 and 25 in Plan No. 526
Right of way in over and along depicted in Plan No. 4494 

aforesaid.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds bearing Nos. 1264 and 1360.

	3. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 2011/29 dated 15th 
June, 2011 made by A. W. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called Tunnana Vanderputtenwatta together with 
the trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Tunnana Koodeluvila Village within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Koodaluvila (G. N. Div. No. 444D) 
in the Divisional Secretariat of Seethawaka and within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Seethawaka in Meda Pattu 
of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Western  
Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by 
Lot 2 hereof on the East by Lot 17 of P. P. Co. 526 (Road) on 
the South by Lots 19 and 20 of P. P. Co. 526 and on the West 
by Road and  containing in extent Twenty decimal Three 
Perches (0A., 0R., 20.3P.) or Naught Decimal Naught Five 
One Three Hectares (0.0513 Ha) according to the said Plan 
No. 2011/29 and registered in Volume/ Folio LDO B 2/46 at 
the Land Registry Avissawella.

Together with the right of way and other similar rights 
in over and along Roadways depicted in the said Plan  
No. 2011/29.

		
Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 

Mortgage Bonds Nos. 1266, 576, 986 and 1758.

	4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 41 depicted in Plan No. 4494 dated 31st January, 
2003 made by P. A. K. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called Warandagahamandiya together with the 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Tunnana within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Kudaluwila (G. N. Div. No. 444 D) in the Divisional 
Secretariat of Seethawaka and within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
limits of Seethawaka in Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in 
the District of Colombo Western  Province and which said 
Lot 41 is bounded on the North by Lot 40, on the East by Lot 

50, on the South by Lot 42 and on the West by Lot 38 and  
containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) or Naught 
Decimal Naught Two Five Two Nine Hectares (0.02529 
Ha.) according to the said Plan No. 4494 and registered at 
the Avissawella Land Registry under title B14/30.

Together with the right of way in over and along all 
the road reservations depicted in the said Plan No. 4494, 
road reservations marked Lot 21A in Plan No. 4436 dated 
08th December, 2002 made by P. A. K. J. Perera, Licensed 
Surveyor and Lots 17 and 25 in the Surveyor General’s Plan 
No. 526.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 804.

	5. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 3907 dated 01st April, 2009 and 
08th September 2015 made by A. D. Withana, Licensed 
Surveyor (being resurvey and amalgamation of Lot 1 
depicted in Plan No. 2508 dated 01st April, 2009 made by 
A. D. Withana Licensed Surveyor and Lot 1 depicted in Plan 
No. 5060 dated 23rd January, 2010 and 03rd February, 2010 
made by A. Jayasuirya Licensed Surveyor) of the land called 
“Ritigahawatte Kebbella and Ritigahawatta” together with 
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon situated at Tunnana and Mawathagama 
Villages within the Grama Niladhari Division of Thunana 
(G. N. Division No. 444B) in the Divisional Secretariat 
of Seethawaka and within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits 
of Seethawaka in Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Kalutara Western  Province and which said Lot 
A is bounded on the North by Road on the East by land 
claimed by A. G. Mei nona, Lots 1, 13, 10, 11, 21 in Plan  
No. 3307, Lots 2 an 3 in Plan No. 5060 made by  
A. Jayasuriya, Licensed Surveyor  on the South by Lot 3 in 
Plan No. 5060 made by A. Jayasuirya, Licensed Surveyor, 
L/S lands claimed by W. P. Wijeratne and WP Missa and 
on the West by land claimed by G. Prasanna Jayaweera and  
containing in extent One Acre and Nought Decimal Two 
Nought Perches (1A., 0R., 0.20P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 3907 and registered in Volume/Folio B 32/113 at the 
Land Registry Avissawella;

Together with the right of way in over and along Road 
Reservations marked Lots R1, R2 and R3 depicted in 
Plan dated 17th September, 2004 made by A. Jayasuriya, 
Licensed Surveyor and R1 and R2 depicted in Plan No. 3307 
dated 06th March, 2005 made by A. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Surveyor.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 2350 and 1756.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

06-1117
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The  DFCC  Bank  PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under section 4 of the recovery of loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed on the 
30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Peak Clothing (Private) Limited a Company 
duly incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka under the Companies Act bearing Registration  
No. PV 62072 and having its registered in Kaduwela 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) has made 
default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 314 dated 
17.06.2011, 27.06.2011, 22.07.2011 attested by Manouri  
K. Liyanage, Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 382 dated 
08.02.2012, 09.02.2012, 14.02.2012 attested by Manouri 
K. Liyanage Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 267 dated 
07.07.2016, 08.07.2016 attested by D. M. H. Wickrama, 
Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 83 dated 27.12.2013 
attested by D. M. H. Wickrama Notary Public, Mortgage 
Bond No. 91 dated 30.01.2014 attested by D. M. H. 
Wickrama, Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 221 dated 
17.08.2015, 19.08.2015, 20.08.2015, 21.08.2015 attested 
by D. M. H. Wickrama Notary Public, Mortgage Bond  
No. 313 dated 17.06.2011 attested by M. K. Liyanage 
Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 1 dated 16.01.2013 
17.01.2013 attested by N. S. Ranatunga, Notary 
Public, Mortgage Bond No. 2 dated 16.01.2013, 
17.01.2013 attested by N. S. Ranatunga Notary Public, 
Mortgage Bond No. 312 dated 17.06.2011 attested by 
M. K. Liyanage Notary Public and Mortgage Bond  
No. 223 dated 17.08.2015, 19.08.2015 attested by D. M. H. 
Wickrama Notary Public all in favour of the DFCC Bank 
PLC (successor to DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC).

And whereas there is as at 28th February, 2018 due 
and owing from the said Peak Clothing (Private) Limited 
to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 314, 382, 267, 83, 91, 221, 313, 1, 2, 312 and 223 a 
sum of Rupees Thirty-four Million Seven Hundred and 
Eighty-six Thousand Nine Hundred and Fourteen and Cents 
Fourteen (Rs. 34,786,914.14) and Great Britain Pounds One 
Million One Hundred and Forty-six Thousand Five Hundred 
and Six and Pence Sixty-five (GBP. 1,146,506.65) and United 
Stated Dollars Eighty-seven Thousand Four Hundred and 
Seventy and Cents Eighty-six (USD 87,470.86)  together 
with interest thereon from 01st March, 2018 to the date 
of Sale on a sum of Rupees Three Million Nine Hundred 

and Ninety-nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-eight  
(Rs. 3,999,968.00) at an interest rate of Nine Per Centum 
(9%) per annum above the Weighted Average Prime Lending 
Rate (AWPR) round upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month and on a sum of Great Britain Pounds Fifty-
five Thousand Five Hundred and Forty-nine and Pence 
Eighty-seven (GBP. 55,549.87) at an interest rate of Eight 
per centum (8.0%) per annum and on a sum of Great Britain 
Pounds One Million Sixty-seven Thousand Nine Hundred 
Fifty-seven and Pence Eleven (GBP. 1,067,957.11) at an 
interest rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per 
annum and on a sum of United States Dollars Fifty-one 
Thousand Three Hundred and Seventeen (USD 51,317.00) 
at an interest rate of 3 months LIBOR (SPOT) plus Nine 
Per centum (LIBOR (SPOT) + 9%) per annum (Subject 
to the floor rate of Eleven per centum (11%) per annum) 
and on a sum of United States Dollars Thirty-six Thousand  
(USD. 36,000.00) at an interest rate of 3 months LIBOR 
plus Six per centum (LIBOR +6%) per annum (Subject to 
the floor rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per 
annum) and on a sum of Rupees Thirty Million Six Hundred 
and Twenty Thousand One Hundred and Forty-three and 
Cents Seventy-four (Rs. 30,620,143.74) at an interest rate of 
Twenty-eight Per Centum (28%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land, buildings, machinery, 
Stocks and premises together with everything else thereon, 
described below mortgaged to the DFCC Bank PLC by the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 314, 382, 267, 83, 91, 221, 
313, 1, 2, 312 and 223 by Peak Clothing (Private) Ltd be 
sold by Public Auction by Thusitha Karunaratne Licensed 
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees Thirty-four Million Seven Hundred and Eighty-six 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Fourteen and Cents Fourteen 
(Rs. 34,786,914.14) and Great Britain Pounds One Million 
One Hundred and Forty-six Thousand Five Hundred and 
Six and Pence Sixty-five (GBP. 1,146,506.65) and United 
Stated Dollars Eighty-seven Thousand Four Hundred and 
Seventy and Cents Eighty-six (USD 87,470.86)  together 
with interest thereon from 01st March, 2018 to the date 
of Sale on a sum of Rupees Three Million Nine Hundred 
and Ninety-nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty-eight  
(Rs. 3,999,968.00) at an interest rate of Nine Per Centum 
(9%) per annum above the Weighted Average Prime Lending 
Rate (AWPR) round upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month and on a sum of Great Britain Pounds Fifty-
five Thousand Five Hundred and Forty-nine and Pence 
Eighty-seven (GBP. 55,549.87) at an interest rate of Eight 
per centum (8.0%) per annum and on a sum of Great Britain 
Pounds One Million Sixty-seven Thousand Nine Hundred 
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Fifty-seven and Pence Eleven (GBP. 1,067,957.11) at an 
interest rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per 
annum and on a sum of United States Dollars Fifty-one 
Thousand Three Hundred and Seventeen (USD 51,317) 
at an interest rate of 3 months LIBOR (SPOT) plus Nine 
Per centum (LIBOR (SPOT) + 9%) per annum (Subject 
to the floor rate of Eleven per centum (11%) per annum) 
and on a sum of United States Dollars Thirty-six Thousand  
(USD. 36,000) at an interest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus 
Six per centum (LIBOR +6%) per annum (Subject to the 
floor rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per 
annum) and on a sum of Rupees Thirty Million Six Hundred 
and Twenty Thousand One Hundred and Forty-three and 
Cents Seventy-four (Rs. 30,620,143.74) at an interest rate of 
Twenty-eight Per Centum (28%) per annum or any portion 
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with 
the costs of advertising and selling the said land, buildings, 
machinery, Stocks and premises together with everything 
else thereon and all monies expended and costs and other 
charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance 
with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms 
of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 314, 382 and 267

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
X depicted in Plan No. 8989 dated 19th May, 2006 made 
by Saliya Wickremasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Melfort Estate bearing Assessment No. 161, 01st 
Lane, Gemunupura together with everything else standing 
thereon situated at Kotalawala in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kotalawala and in the Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Kaduwela within the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and bounded on the 
North by Lots 1 and 2 in Plan No. 3418 and Lot 2 in Plan  
No. 3048, on the East by Lots 1 and 2 in Plan No. 3418 and 
Lot 2 in Plan No. 3048 and remaining portion of Lot 1 in Plan  
No. 3048, on the South by remaining portion of Lot 1 in Plan 
No. 3048 and on the West by remaining portion of Lot 1 in Plan  
No. 3048 and Lot 2 in Plan No. 3418 and Road (Lot R2 
in Plan No. 3048) and containing in extent One Rood and 
Eighteen Decimal Eight Five Perches (00A., 01R., 18.85P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 8989 and registered at 
Homagama Land Registry.

Lot X in the said Plan No. 8989 has been resurveyed 
according to Plan No. 14239 which is morefully described 
as follows;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 14239 dated 28th June, 2016 
made by Saliya Wickremasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Melfort Estate bearing Assessment No. 161, 01st 
Lane, Gemunupura together with everything else standing 
thereon situated at Kotalawala in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kotalawala and in the Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Kaduwela within the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and bounded on 
the North by premises of Peak Clothing Lanka (Pvt) Ltd 
and Lot 3 in Plan No. 13489, on the East by Lot 3 in Plan  
No. 13489, on the South by Lot 3 in Plan No. 13489 and 
on the West by Road and Premises of Peak Clothing Lanka 
(Pvt) Ltd and containing in extent One Rood and Eighteen 
Decimal Eight Five Perches (00A., 01R., 18.85P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 14239.

Together with the right of way in over and along the 
reservation for road marked Lot R2 depicted in Plan  
No. 3048 dated 24th May, 1991 made by I. A. C. Senaratne, 
Licensed Surveyor.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 83, 91 and 221

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 in Plan No. 2882 dated 09th February, 1990 made by 
D. G. Mendis, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called defined 
portion of Pansalewatta, Henewatta alias Madamewatta and 
Paluwatta, Lot A of Lot 4 of Walawwewatta, Delgahawatta 
alias Anohamigewatta and defined portion of Welewatta 
situated at Idantota in Madampe in the Grama Niladhari 
division of Idanthota (80A) and in the Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Hikkaduwa within the limits of Rajgama 
Pradeshiya Sabha in Wellaboda Pattuwa in the District of 
Galle Southern Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on 
the North by Pradeshiya Sabha Road, on the East by Lot B 
of Lot 4 of Walawwewatta Olinnewatta and Kitulgahawatta 
alias Bakmigahawatta, on the South by Kahatagahawatta 
and Pradeshiya Sabha Road and on the West by Pradeshiya 
Sabha Road and containing in extent One Acre Three Roods 
and Thirty Two Decimal One Perches (1A., 3R., 32.1P.) 
together with the building and everything else standing 
thereon and registered at the Galle Land Registry.

Description of the Machinery Mortgaged 
by Mortgage Bond No. 313

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and 
equipment including - 
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Name of Asset Qty Unit Value

Single Needle Machine 61 $800.00 $48,800.00
Single Needle Machine 35 $925.00 $32,375.00
Single Needle Machine 1 $860.00 $860.00
Single Needle Machine 7 $820.00 $5,740.00
Single Needle Machine 4 $760.00 $3,040.00
Double Needle Sewing Machine 5 $1,950.00 $9,750.00
Double Needle Sewing Machine 1 $1,930.00 $1,930.00
Over Lock Sewing Machine 13 $890.00 $11,570.00
Over Lock Sewing Machine 1 $760.00 $760.00
Over Lock Sewing Machine 7 $920.00 $6,440.00
Over Lock Sewing Machine 1 $850.00 $850.00
Blind Hem Sewing Machine 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
Button Attacher 1 $3,045.00 $3,045.00
Button Attacher 2 $3,045.00 $6,090.00
Button Feeder 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
Bar Tak Machine 3 $2,530.00 $7,590.00
Bar Tak Machine 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Snap button Machine 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Fusing Machine 1 $7,985.00 $7,985.00
Fusing Machine 1 $6,860.00 $6,860.00
Flat Lock Machine 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
Kansai Waist Band Machine 2 $1,650.00 $3,300.00
Button Hold Machine 3 $3,570.00 $10,710.00
Feed of The Arm Machine 1 $3,250.00 $3,250.00
Side Cutter Sewing Machine 3 $1,700.00 $5,100.00
Cloth Drill 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Cloth Cutter 3 $350.00 $1,050.00
2 Needle Chain Stich Sewing Machine 4 $4,000.00 $16,000.00
Iron Table 18 $600.00 $10,800.00
Boiler 1 $9,250.00 $9,250.00
Band Knife 1 $3,150.00 $3,150.00
Hand Cutter 1 $125.00 $125.00
Collar Point Ironing Machine 1 $1,750.00 $1,750.00
Shirt Folding Machine 1 $2,250.00 $2,250.00
Gerber System 1 $24,000.00 $24,000.00
Fabric Inspection Machine 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
Thread Winder Machine 1 $495.00 $495.00
Compressor 1 $570.00 $570.00
Generator 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
Presses 7 $6,714.29 $47,000.00
Total Value - USD 202 $336,485.00
Shoulder Pad Attacher 1 €8,525.00 €14,500.00
Sleeve Setting Machine 1 €8,500.00 €8,500.00
Flap Pocket 1 €14,500.00 €8,250.00
Key Hole 1 €8,250.00 €8,525.00
Total Value - Euro 4 €39,775.00
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together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon premises Peak Cloting (Pvt) Ltd, Melfort Estate, 
Gamunupura, Kothalawala, Kaduwela and in and upon any other godowns stores and premises at which the Company now 
is and may at any time and from time to time hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon which the said movable plant 
machinery and equipment may from time to time be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of the movable plant machinery 
and equipment whatsoever which shall or may from time to time replace the said movable plant machinery and equipment 
spares accessories and tools which shall or may from time to time and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and 
upon the aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or any other place or places of business into which the Company 
may at any time and from time to time hereafter remove or carry on its business or trade or store or keep the said movable 
plant machinery equipment spares accessories and tools.

Description of the Machinery Mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 1

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment including -

No. Description Quantity

Sewing machines
HS Code No. 8452.21.00
As per Proforma Invoice No. NG/11/BB/124  Dated 03.Feb.2012
CIF Colombo - Incoterms 2010

1. Hongkong made NGAI Model NS-89P Automatic Collar 
Trimming Turning and blocking Machine 
Total Power : 2KW Power            Supply : 1 PH/220V/50HZ
Compressed Air Pressure : 5KGF/CM2
Maximum Pressing Length :6" 

1 Set

2. Hongkong made NGAI Model NS-85 Automatic Cuff Blicking 
Machine 
Power Supply : 1 PH/220V/50HZ
Compressed Air Pressure : 5KGF/CM2
Heater Power : 2KW 

1 Set

3. Hongkong made NGAI Model NS - 92L - 10" Collar Contour 
Trimmer
Power Supply : 1 PH/220V/50HZ
Total Power : 1 KW
Motor Power : 0.25KW 

1 Set

4. Hongkong Made NGAI Model NS - 94.
Placket Cutting Machine - 1 1/2" - 2 - 3/4"
Power Supply : 1 PH/ 220V/ 50 HZ

1 Set

5. Hongkong Made NGAI Model NS - 2410.
Rotary Pressing Machine
Voltage : 380V/1PH/50HZ
Power : 2000WATT
(125 Pcs per hour)

1 Set

6. F - 538 Triangular Sleeve Placket Folder without sheet 1 Set

7. Hongkong Made NGAI Model NS - 54.
Thread Cleaning Machine
Power Supply : 3PH/380AV/50HZ
Power : 3.1KW
Motor : 1420R/Min

2 Sets

8. Hongkong Made NGAI Model NS - 650.
Pneumatic Shirt Folding table
Output : 450 Pcs/ 8 hours

2 Sets
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No. Description Quantity
9. HongKong Made NGAI Model NS - 3502

Motor : 1 HP
Table Size : 32" X 48"
380 V/ 3PH/ 50HZ

15 Sets

10. HongKong Made NGAI Model NS - 8248 W
Hot and Cool Head Collar creasing Press (Water Cooling)
Heater - 1 KW Cooling Machine : 0.75 PH
220V/1PH/50HZ

1 Set

11. HongKong Made NGAI Model NS - 8401P
Automatic Shirt Arm Hole Press  Power 3.55 KW
Air Consumption 55L/Min
380V/3PH/50HZ

1 Set

12. China Asemble "New Horizon"      Model NH-1-3030D
Fire - Tube Steam Boiler        with Diesel oil Burner
Voltage : 220 V/1PH/50HZ       Steam Pressure : 5 (KGF/CM2)
Steam Output ; 150 (KG/HR)    Boilder Size 1400x1300x1930 
MM

1 Set

13. USA Water Softener for Boiler 1 Set
14. HongKong Made NGAI Shing Model NS - 3533

Vaccum Ironing Table with single buck
(Vacuum Motor - 1 HP)
Machine Size : 153 cm x 52 cm x 164 cm
380V/3PH/50HZ

5 Set

15. HongKong made NGAI Shing Model NS - 523
Cutting Table with : 6 ft (72'')                 Length - 48 fts
Adjustable leg for table leveling (3 legs)
Fibre Top, Metal Edge Line

1 Set

136 Sets Industrial Sewing Machines
HS Code No : 8452.21.00
As per Proforma Invoice No. SMC - 11/1025ST     Dated 30.Jan.2012
CIF Colombo - Incoterms 2010

1. SPS/D - BH3000G 3 Sets

2. KM - 797 - 7S 3 Sets

3. KM - 2300 ESG 95 Sets

4. KM - 350A - 7S 5 Sets

5. KM - 506 - 7S 6 Sets

6. SC93160333355 15 Sets

7. SPS/D-B1202 - 02 3 Sets

8. SC8200L/01 3 Sets

9. KM-360J-M 2 Sets

10. SF7500N156GutB 1 Set

together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon premises Peak Clothing (Pvt) Ltd, Madama 
Junction, Kuleegoda, Ambalangoda within the Grama Niladhari Division of Idanthota, No. 80A and in the Divisional 
Secretarial Division of Hikkaduwa and in the District of Galle, Southern Province of the Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and 
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in and upon any other godowns stores and premises at which the Company now is and may at any time and from time to time 
hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon which the said movable plant machinery and equipment may from time to 
time be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment whatsover which shall or may 
from time to time replace the said movable plant machinery and equipment spares accessories and tools which shall or may 
from time to time and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and upon the aforesaid godowns stores and premises 
and all or any other place or places of business into which the Company may at any time and from time to time hereafter 
remove or carry on its business or trade or store or keep the said movable machinery equipment spares accessories and tools.

Description of the Machinery Mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 2

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment including -

No. Description Quantity
1. Sewing Machine

0275-990113 K
275-140342          Serial No. 275330867, 275330868

2

2. Sewing Machine
0272-990112 K
272-740642         Serial No. 272319809

1

3. Sewing Unit
0550 993105 K
550-5-5-2                Serial No. 550617325

1

4. Sewing CNC Automate
0580 990025 K
580 - 141000 - 01                  Serial No. 580617215

1

5. Sewing Unit
1970 991063 K
100-68/2                          Serial No. 1970616140

1

together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon premises Peak Clothing (Pvt) Ltd, Madama Junction, 
Kuleegoda, Ambalangoda within the Grama Niladhari Division of Idanthota, No. 80A and in the Divisional Secretarial 
Division of Hikkaduwa and in the District of Galle, Southern Province of the Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and in and upon 
any other godowns stores and premises at which the Company now is and may at any time and from time to time hereafter be 
carrying on business or in or upon which the said movable plant machinery and equipment may from time to time be stored 
kept or lie and also the entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment whatsoever which shall or may from time to 
time replace the said movable plant machinery and equipment spares accessories and tools which shall or may from time to 
time and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and upon the aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or 
any other place or places of business into which the Company may at any time and from time to time hereafter remove or 
carry on its business or trade or store or keep the said movable machinery equipment spares accessories and tools.

Description of the Stocks Mortgaged By Mortgage Bond No. 312

The entirety of the stock-in-trade merchandise effects and things raw materials work-in-progress finished goods 
and unfinished goods including as at 31st may, 2011

No. Description Value
1 Fabric 20,055,350.00
2 Fusing 2,292,040.00
3 Thread 2,865,050.00
4 Button 863,465.00
5 Zipper 858,515.00
6 Trims 573,010.00
7 Packing Accessories 1,146,020.00

Total 28,653,450.00
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And all other items and other movable property of every sort and description whatsoever now lying in and upon 
or stores at the premises Peak Clothing (Pvt) Ltd, Melfort Estate, Gamunupura, Kothalawala, Kaduwela in the District of 
Colombo Western Province of the Republic of Sri Lanka and in and upon any other godowns stores and premises at which 
the Company now is or may at any time and from time to time hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon which the said 
stock-in-trade merchandise effects and things raw materials work-in-progress finished goods and unfinished goods and all 
other items and other movable property of whatsoever king or nature which shall or may at any time and from time to time 
and at all times be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of the stock-in-trade merchandise effects and things raw materials 
work-in-progress finished goods and unfinished goods and all other items and other movable property of whatsoever kind 
or nature which shall or may at any time and from time to time and at all times hereafter during the continuance of these 
presents be brought into stored kept or lie in and upon the aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or any other 
place or places of business into which the Company may at any time and from time to time hereafter remove or carry on 
its business of trade or store the said stock-in-trade merchandise effect and things raw materials work-in-progress finished 
goods and unfinished goods and all other items and other movable property of whatsoever kind or nature including all the 
aforesaid property in transit to the aforementioned godowns stores and premises or places of business or awaiting shipment 
or clearance at the share or warehouses in the District of Colombo in the said republic.

Description of the Machinery  Mortgaged By Mortgage Bond No. 223

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment including -

Description Quantity
Spare parts for Industrial Sewing machines 01
Brand New Oshima fusing machine complete set 01
Brand New Oshima fusing machine complete set 01
Nisho Vacuum and Blowing Iron table complete set 06
Industrial Sewing Machine 02
Steam Pressing Equipment 01
Knife 01
Generator 01
10 sets of Vacuum ironing table and Irons, Iron Hose 10
Industrial Sewing Machine Parts 40
Pusher with Wheel 01
Sewing Machines 07
Sewing Machines - Spare Parts 03
Industrial Sewing Machine Parts 06
JUKI Brand Industrial Sewing Machine with standard accessories 05
Standard Cutting Table, Trolley Duct and Parts 02
Fabric Printing Machine 03

together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon premises Peak Clothing (Private) Limited, Melfort 
Estate, Gemunupura, Kotalawala, Kaduwela within the Grama Niladhari division of Kothalawala - No. 473 in the Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Kaduwela and in the District of Colombo, Western Province of the Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
and in and upon any other godowns stores and premises at which the Obligor now is and may at any time and from time 
to time hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon which the said movable plant machinery and equipment may from 
time to time be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment whatsoever which 
shall or may for time to time replace the said movable plant machinery and equipment spares accessories and tools which 
shall or may from time to time and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and upon the aforesaid godowns 
stores and premises and all or any other place or places of business into which the Obligor may at any time and from time to 
time hereafter remove or carry on its business or trade or store or keep the said movable plant machinery equipment spares 
accessories and tools.

	L akshman Silva,
	 Chief Executive Officer.
DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.
06-1101
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The  DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution Passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Puremetals (Private) Limited a Company duly 
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka under the Companies Act bearing Registration  
No. PV 107095 and having its registered office in Dehiwala. 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company') has made default 
in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 2481 dated 18th 
July, 2016 and Mortgage Bond No. 2701 date 22nd February, 
2017 both attested by B. Y. Devasurendra (NP) in favour of 
DFCC Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 31st March, 2018 due 
and owing from the said Puremetals (Private) Limited 
to the DFCC bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 2481 and 2701 a sum of Rupees Twenty-two Million 
Seven Hundred Thirty-eight Thousand One Hundred Forty-
eight and Cents Forty-six (Rs. 22,738,148.46) together with 
interest thereon from 01st April, 2018 to the date of Sale on 
a sum of Rupees Five Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Six 
Hundred five and Cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 556,605.87) at an 
interest rate of Eight Per Centum (8.0%) per annum above 
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR - SPOT) 
which will be revised on the first business day of each month. 
For the purpose of revision AWPR means the last published 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate preceding the date 
of revision, published on a weekly basis by the Central bank 
of Sri Lanka. And on a sum of Rupees Fifteen Million Three 
Hundred and Nine Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-nine and 
Cents Forty-eight (Rs. 15,309,499.48) at an interest rate of 
Eight Decimal Five Per Centum (8.5%) per annum above 
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR - SPOT) 
which will be revised on the first business day of each month. 
For the purpose of revision AWPR means the last published 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate preceding the date 
of revision, published on a weekly basis by the Central 
bank of Sri Lanka. And on a sum of Rupees Two Million 
One Hundred and Seventy-one Thousand Four Hundred  
(Rs. 2,171,400.00) at an interest rate of Nine decimal Five 
Per Centum (9.5%) per  annum above the Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR - SPOT) which will be revised 
on the first business day of each month. For the purpose of 
revision AWPR means the last published Average Weighted 

Prime Lending Rate preceding the date of revision, published 
on a weekly basis by the Central bank of Sri Lanka. And 
on a sum of Rupees Three Million Six Hundred Forty-five 
Thousand and Four Hundred Forty-one and Cents Sixty-
eight (Rs. 3,645,441.68) at an interest rate of Twenty Eight 
Per Centum (28%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land and building described 
below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 2481 and 2701 by Thambirajah 
Mahendran and Dhushanthi Elizabeth Mahendran be sold 
by Public Auction by Thusitha Karunarathne, Licensed 
Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Twenty-two Million Seven Hundred Thirty-eight 
Thousand One Hundred Forty-eight and Cents Forty-six 
(Rs. 22,738,148.46) together with interest thereon from 01st 
April, 2018 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees Five 
Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Six Hundred Five and 
Cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 556,605.87) at an interest rate of 
Eight Per Centum (8.0%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR-SPOT) which will 
be revised on the first business day of each month for 
the purpose of revision AWPR means the last published 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate preceding the date 
of revision, published on a weekly basis by the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka. And on a sum of Rupees Fifteen Million Three 
Hundred and Nine Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-nine and 
Cents Forty-eight (Rs. 15,309,499.48) at an interest rate of 
Eight Decimal Five Per Centum (8.5%) per annum above 
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR - SPOT) 
which will be revised on the first business day of each month. 
For the purpose of revision AWPR means the last published 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate preceding the date 
of revision, published on a weekly basis by the Central bank 
of Sri Lanka. And on a sum of Rupees Two Million One 
Hundred and Seventy-one Thousand Four Hundred (Rs. 
2,171,400.00) at an interest rate of Nine Decimal Five Per 
Centum (9.5%) per  annum above the Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR - SPOT) which will be revised 
on the first business day of each month. For the purpose of 
revision AWPR means the last published Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate preceding the date of revision, 
published on a weekly basis by the Central bank of Sri 
Lanka. And on a sum of Rupees Three Million Six Hundred 
Forty-five Thousand and Four Hundred Forty-one and Cents 
Sixty-eight (Rs. 3,645,441.68) at an interest rate of Twenty 
Eight Per Centum (28%) per annum or any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with the cost 
of advertising and selling the said land and premises and 
all monies expended and costs and other charges incurred 
by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 4 of 1990.
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Description of the Property Mortgaged By 
Mortgage Bond No. 2481 and 2701

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 4 depicted in Plan No. 634 dated 28th June 1974 made 
by A. P. S. Gunawardena Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called "Konegahawatta" together with the trees, plantations, 
soil and everything standing thereon bearing Assessment 
No. 158/18, Sri Saranankara Road situated at Kalubowila 
in the Grama Niladhari Division of Galwala and Divisional 
Secretariat Division Dehiwala within the Municipal Council 
Limits of Dehiwala Mount Lavinia in the Palle Pattu of 
Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province 
and which said Lot 4 is bounded on the,

North by premises bearing Assessment No. 16/1, 
Nandimittra Mawatha and No. 73 Boteju Road on the

East  by premises Assessment No. 71 Boteju Road on the
South  by Lot 5 and on the 
West  by Lots B and 3 and containing in extent Eleven 

Decimal Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 11.7P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 634 and registered at the Land Registry 
Delkanda

		
According to a recent resurvey aforesaid Lot 4 depicted 

in Plan No. 634 dated 28th June, 1974 made by A. P. S. 
Gunawardena Licensed Surveyor is described as follows.

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 3853 dated 09th February, 2012 
made by C. De. S. Gunetilleke, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called "Konegahawatta" together with the trees, 
plantations, soil and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 158/18, Sri Saranankara Road situated at 
Kalubowila in the Grama Niladhari Division of Galwala 
and Divisional Secretariat Division Dehiwala within the 
Municipal Council Limits of Dehiwala Mount Lavinia in 
the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo 
Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the,

North by premises bearing Assessment No. 16/1, 
Nandimittra Mawatha and No. 73 Sri Saranankara Road on 
the,

East by premises Assessment No. 71 Sri Saranankara 
Road on the,

South by Lot 5 in Plan No. 634 dated 28th June, 1974 
made by A. P. S. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor and on 
the, 

West  by Reservation for a Road 12 feet wide depicted as 
Lots B and 3 in the said Plan No. 634.

and containing in extent Eleven Decimal Seven Perches 
(0A., 0R., 11.7P.) according to the said Plan No. 3853.

Together with the right of way in over and along the road 
Reservation described below:-

	1. All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot B depicted in Plan No. 634 dated 28th June 1974 made 
by A. P. S. Gunawardena Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called “Konegahawatta” situated at Kalubowila as aforesaid 
and which said Lot B is bounded on the,

North by Lot 3 on the,
East by Lots 4 and 5 on the, 
South by Road and on the, 
West by Lot 6.	

and containing in extent Two Decimal Six Five Perches 
(0A., 0R., 2.65P.) according to the said Plan No. 634 and 
registered at the Land Registry Delkanda.

	2. All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 12 depicted in Plan No. 465 dated 14th November, 1953 
made by S. Rajendra (Licensed Surveyor) of the Land called 
"Konegahawatta" situated at Kalubowila as aforesaid and 
which said Lot 12 is bounded on the,

North by Lots A1, A2, A3, A4 and A6 on the,
East by Boteju Road on the, 
South by Lots A7, A8, A9 and A10 and on the, 
West by Mosque bearing No. 6 Mosque Road.	

and containing in extent Thirty-two Decimal Six Eight 
Perches (0A., 0R., 32.68P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 465 and registered at the Land Registry Delkanda.

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-1100

The  DFCC bank PLC

Notice of Resolution Passed by the DFCC Bank PLC
Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Arumagam Varadaras of Bandarawela has made 
default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 460 dated 
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05.07.2010, Mortgage Bond No. 2490 dated 24.08.2017 and 
Mortgage Bond No. 1573 dated 30.12.2014, Mortgage Bond 
No. 2061 dated 01.04.2016 all attested by K. G. De Silva, 
Notary Public in favour of the DFCC Bank PLC. (successor 
to DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC.)

And whereas there is as at 31st March, 2018 due and 
owing from the said Arumagam Varadaras to the DFCC 
Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 460, 2490, 
1573 and 2061 a sum of Rupees Ten Million Eight Hundred 
Sixty-five Thousand and Seven Hundred Seventeen and 
Cents Twenty-seven (Rs. 10,865,717.27) together with 
interest thereon from 1st of April, 2018 to the date of 
Sale on a sum of Rupees One Million Five Hundred and 
Ninety-four Thousand and Nine Hundred Forty-two  
(Rs. 1,594,942) at a rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum 
(7.5%) per annum above the Weighted Average Prime 
Lending Rate (AWPR) which will be revised which will be 
revised every three months on the 1st day of business in the 
months of January, April, July and October each year and 
on a sum of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred Thousand 
(Rs. 2,600,000) at the rate of Eight Decimal Five per centum 
(8.5%) per annum above the Weighted Average Prime 
Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will be revised every 
month on the first business day of each month and on a sum of 
Rupees Six Million Three Hundred Seventy-five Thosuand 
Eight Hundred and Eighty-five and Cents Seventy-six only  
(Rs. 6,375,885.76) at a rate of interest calculated at Twenty 
Eight per centum (28%) per annum.  

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the land and premises described below 
mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 460, 2490, 1573 and 2061 by Arumagam 
Varadaras be sold by Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya 
Licensed Auctioneers of Kandy for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Ten Million Eight Hundred Sixty-five 
Thousand and Seven Hundred Seventeen and Cents Twenty-
seven (Rs. 10,865,717.27) together with interest thereon 
from 1st of April 2018 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees 
One Million Five Hundred and Ninety-four Thousand and 
Nine Hundred Forty-two (Rs. 1,594,942.00) at the rate of 
Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per annum above 
the Weighted  Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) which 
will be revised which will be revised every three months 
on the first day of business in the months of January, April, 
July and October each year and on a sum of Rupees Two 
Million Six Hundred Thousand (Rs. 2,600,000) at the rate 
of Eight Decimal Five per centum (8.5%) per annum above 

the Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month and on a sum of Rupees Six Million Three 
Hundred Seventy-five Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty-
five and Cents Seventy-six only (Rs. 6,375,885.76) at a rate 
of interest calculated at Twenty Eight Per Centum (28%) 
per annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the 
time of Sale together with the cost of advertising and selling 
the said land and premises and all monies expended and 
costs and other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC 
in accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 460, 2490, 1573 and 2061

All that defined and divided allotment of land from and 
out of the land called “Haputale Estate” (part of field No. 4 
in Sherwood Division) which is situated at Haputhalegama, 
in the Grama Sewa Division of 63a Haputale within the D. 
S. Division of Haputale within the Urban Council Limits 
of Haputale Medakinda Mahapalata Korale in the Badulla 
District of the Province of Uva which has been depicted as 
Lot No. 1 in Plan of survey bearing No. 2028 surveyed on 
11th May 2010 and dated 11th May 2010 made by Wijitha 
Sellahewa, LS (being an amalgamation of Lot No. 49 in Plan 
No. 1010 made by U. N. P. Wijeweera LS and Lot No. 2 in Plan  
No. 1956 made by Wijitha Sellahewa LS) which is bounded 
according to the said Plan on the North by Lot No. 1 in Plan 
No. 1956 made by Wijitha Sellahewa LS and Lot 40 (Road) 
in Plan No. 1010 made by U. N. P. Wijeweera LS on the East 
by Lots 40 (Road) and 50 in the said Plan No. 1010, on the 
South by Lots 50 and 40 (Road) in the said Plan No. 1010 
and on the West by Lot 40 (Road) in the said Plan No. 1010 
and Lot No. 1 in Plan No. 1956 made by Wijitha Sellahewa 
LS and containing in extent Eighteen Decimal Nine Seven 
Perches (0A., 0R.,18.97P.) and together with the building 
and everything else standing thereon and registered at the 
Badulla District Land Registry.

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

06-1094
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The  DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution Passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Iruwana Mudiyanselage Sumanathilake and 
Wickramasooriya Patabendige Anil Sarath and Shamal 
Kaushalya Jayasinghe of Anuradhapura Carrying on 
Business under the name Style and firm of Nethmi Enterprises 
of Anuradhapura and Wickramasooriya Patabendige Anil 
Sarath of Maggona have made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond No. 8349 dated 22.08.2017 attested by S. K. 
Nadi Aakash Kurera, Notary Public in favour of the DFCC 
Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 31st March 2018 due and 
owing from the said Iruwana Mudiyanselage Sumanathilake 
and Wickramasooriya Patabendige Anil Sarath and 
Shamal Kaushalya Jayasinghe to the DFCC Bank PLC on 
the aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 8349 a sum of Rupees 
Ten Million Two Hundred and Thirty-seven Thousand 
Three Hundred and Sixty-four and Cents Twenty-eight  
(Rs. 10,237,364.28) together with interest thereon from 1st 
of April, 2018 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees Nine 
Million Six Hundred Sixty-six Thousand and Six Hundred 
and Sixty-six (Rs. 9,666,666.00) at a rate of Eight Decimal 
Five per centum (8.5%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted  Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will 
be revised monthly on the first day of business every month.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the land and building  described below 
mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond No. 8349 by Wickramasooriya Patabendige Anil 
Sarath be sold by Public Auction by Messers. Schokman 
and Samerawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Ten Million 
Two Hundred and Thirty-seven Thousand Three Hundred 
and Sixty-four and Cents Twenty-eight (Rs. 10,237,364.28) 
together with interest thereon from 1st of April 2018 
to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees Nine Million Six 
Hundred Sixty-six Thousand and Six Hundred and Sixty-six  
(Rs. 9,666,666.00) at the rate of Eight Decimal Five per 
centum (8.5%) per annum above the Average Weighted  
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will be revised 
monthly on the first day of business every month or any 

portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together 
with the cost of advertising and selling the said land and 
premises and all monies expended and costs and other 
charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance 
with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms 
of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged 
by Mortgage Bond No. 8349

All that allotment of land marked Lot No. 26 in Plan 
No. 210 dated 04.07.1962 prepared by N. S. L. Fernando, 
Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Palliya Waththa 
Estate” situated at Maha Payagala Village in Payagala Badda 
in Kaluthara Thotamuna South in the District of Kaluthara 
of Western Province, 

Bounded as follows;
North - by Lot No. 25 of this land,
East	 - by Road,
South - by Lot No. 140 (20 feet wide access way),
West - by Lot No. 27 of this land,

Containing in extent of Twenty Decimal Seven Perches 
(00A., 00R., 20.7P.) with everything standing thereon. 

According to  a recent survey this land describes as 
follows - 

All that allotment of land marked as Lot No. 26 in Plan 
No. 4837 dated 10.10.2016 by O. S. B. Kumarasiri, Licensed 
Surveyor, the land called “Palliya Waththa Estate” situated 
at Kuda Paiyagala village of No. 735 Grama Niladhari 
Division in Payagala North within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Beruwala of Payagala within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Beruwala in Payagal Bedda of Kalutara 
Thotamuna South in Kaluthara District of Western Province, 
Bounded as follows;

North - by Lot No. 25 in Plan. 210,
East	 - by Galle Road,
South - by Lot No. 140 (20 feet wide access way) in Plan 
No. 210 now Neinawatta 01st Cross Road),
West - by Lot No. 27 in Plan No. 210,

Containing in extent of Twenty Decimal Seven Perches 
(00A., 00R., 20.7P.) with everything standing thereon. (Held 
and possessed by virtue of Deed of Transfer No. 2140A 
dated 24.01.2011 attested by Ajitha C. Samarasekara, Notary 
Public by Deed of Transfer No. 2536 dated 14.07.2011 
attested by Ajitha C. Samarasekara, Notary Public.)

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

06-1095
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DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution Passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Rathsara Chandima Lokugamhewa of 
Ambalangoda has made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond No. 2144 dated 29th May 2014 attested by 
S. M. Premananda Silva, Notary Public of Ambalangoda 
in favour of the DFCC Bank PLC (Successor to DFCC 
Vardhana Bank PLC).

And whereas there is as at 31st January 2018 due and 
owing from the said Rathsara Chandima Lokugamhewa 
to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 2144 a sum of Rupees Six Million Four Hundred 
and Seventy-four Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-
eight and Cents Ninety-eight (Rs. 6,474,438.98) together 
with interest thereon from 01st of February, 2018 to 
the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees Six Million Four 
Hundred and Seventy-four Thousand Four Hundred and 
Thirty-eight and Cents Ninety-eight (Rs. 6,474,438.98) 
at a rate of interest calculated at Fifteen Per Centum 
(15%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land and premises described 
below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid 
Mortgage Bond No. 2144 by Rathsara Chandima 
Lokugamhewa be sold by Public Auction by Messers 
Schokman and Samerawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers 
of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Six Million Four Hundred and Seventy-four Thousand 
Four Hundred and Thirty-eight and Cents Ninety-eight  
(Rs. 6,474,438.98) together with interest thereon from 
01st of February, 2018 to the date of Sale on a sum of 
Rupees Six Million Four Hundred and Seventy-four 
Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-eight and Cents 
Ninety-eight (Rs. 6,474,438.98) at a rate of interest 
calculated at Fifteen per centum (15%) per annum or 
any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale 
together with the cost of advertising and selling the said 
land and premises and all  monies expended and costs 
and other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in 

accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks  (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond No. 2144

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot B depicted in Plan No. 2070 dated 12.05.2005 made 
by S. Preethi Weerawardene, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called Nambimulle Uswatta being amalgamation of 
Lot 3A depicted in Plan No. 3756 dated 24.10.1993 made 
by D. G. Mendis Licensed Surveyor and Lot A depicted 
in Plan No. 2069 dated 02.05.2005 made by S. Preethi 
Weerawardene, Licensed Surveyor together with soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon and situated at Nambimulla within the Divisional 
Secretariat of Ambalangoda, Urban Council limits of 
Ambalangoda in Wellaboda Pattu of District of Galle, 
Southern Province and bounded on the North by Lot 07 
of this land and Dombagahawatta alias Galagawawatta 
(Presently Uswatta Mawatha); East by Lot 04 of this land; 
South by Lot 05 of this land; and on the West by Gedarawatta 
and containing Twenty Eight Decimal Six Perches in extent  
(0A., 0R., 28.6P.)

The aforesaid land is an amalgamation of the lands described 
below:

1.	 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3A depicted in Plan No. 3756 dated 24.10.1993 made 
by D. G. Mendis, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Nambimullauswatta and situated at Nambimulla aforesaid 
and bounded on the North by Lot 07 of this land and 
Dombagahawatta alias Galagawawatta (presently Uswatta 
Mawatha); East by Lot 04 of this land; South by Lot 05 of 
this land; and on the West by 03 feet in foot path reservation 
from Gedarawatta and containing Twenty Seven decimal 
Six Perches in extent (0A., 0R., 27.6P.) and registered at the 
Land Registry of Balapitiya.

2.	 All that undivided strip of land containing One 
Decimal Nine Naught Perches (1.90P.) marked for three feet 
wide road along the western boundary of the land marked 
Lot 3 of the land called Nambimullauswatta and situated at 
Nambimulla and bounded on the North by Road (Lot 07 of 
the same land) and Dombagahawatta alias Galagawawatta; 
East by Lot 04 of the same land; South by Lot 05 of the same 
land and on the West by Gedarawatta and containing Twenty-
nine Decimal Five Perches in extent (0A., 0R., 29.5P.) and 
registered under at the Land Registry of Balapitiya.

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

06-1096
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DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas Mohomed Haldeen Mohomed Ismath and Abdul 
Raheem Fathima Riyasa of Narammala carrying on business 
under the name style and firm of Casual City at Narammala, 
have made default in payments due on Mortgage Bond 
No. 22223 dated 20th December, 2016 attested by S. B. 
Wanduragala (Notary Public) of Kurunegala in favour of 
DFCC Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 31st March, 2018 
due and owing from the said Mohomed Haldeen 
Mohomed Ismath and Abdul Raheem Fathima 
Riyasa to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid 
Mortgage Bond No. 22223 a sum of Rupees Nine 
Million Two Hundred and Seventy-eight Thousand 
Four Hundred and Thirty-two and Cents Fifty-one  
(Rs. 9,278,432.51) together with interest thereon from 
01st April, 2018 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees 
Two Million Six Hundred Ninety-two Thousand One 
Hundred Fifty-four and Cents Two (Rs. 2,692,154.02) at 
an interest rate of Eight Decimal Five per Centum (8.5%) 
per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending 
Rate (AWPR-SPOT) subject to a floor rate of Ninetten Per 
Centum (19.0%) per annum for the purpose of revision 
AWPR means the last published Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate preceding the date of revision, 
published on a weekly basis by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka. The dates of revision will be the first business 
day of each month and on a sum of Rupees Six Million 
Three Hundred and Seventy Thousand Four Hundred and 
Eighty-eight and Cents Ninety-nine (Rs. 6,370,488.99) at 
an interest rate of Twenty Eight per centum (28.0%) per 
annum from 01st April, 2018.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC 
Bank PLC under the powers vested in them by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the land and 
building premises described below mortgaged to DFCC 
Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond No. 22223 
by Mohomed Haldeen Mohomed Ismath be sold by 
pubic Auction by M/S Schokman and Samerawickreme 
Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo for the recovery of 

the said sum of Rupees Nine Million Two Hundred and 
Seventy-eight Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty-two 
and Cents Fifty-one (Rs. 9,278,432.51) together with 
interest thereon from 01st April, 2018 to the date of sale 
on a sum of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred Ninety-
two Thousand One Hundred Fifty-four and Cents Two 
(Rs. 2,692,154.02) at an interest rate of Eight Decimal 
Five per Centum (8.5%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) subject 
to a floor rate of Nineteen Per Centum (19.0%) per 
annum for the purpose of revision AWPR means the 
last published Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate 
preceding the date of revision, published on a weekly 
basis by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. The dates of 
revision will be the first business day of each month 
and on a sum of Rupees Six Million Three Hundred and 
Seventy Thousand Four Hundred and Eighty-eight and 
Cents Ninety-nine (Rs. 6,370,488.99) at an interest rate 
of Twenty Eight per centum (28.0%) per annum from 
01st April, 2018 or any portion thereof remaining unpaid 
at the time of Sale  together with the cost of advertising 
and selling the said land and premises and all monies 
expended and costs and other charges incurred by the 
DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants of the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond No. 22223

All that divided and defined allotment of land called 
Kongahamulawatta depicted as Lot 02 in Plan No. 7195 
dated 31st December, 2010 made by K. A. Amarathunga 
(Licensed Surveyor) situated at Dematagahawela in the 
Gramaseva Division of 1065 Narammala in the Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Narammala within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Narammala in Udukaha Korale North of 
Dambadeni Hatpattu in the District of Kurunegala North 
Western Province and which said Lot 02 is bounded 
according to the said Plan on the

North : by Lot 01 in the said Plan No. 7195,
East : by land claimed M. K. M. Anwar,
South : by Lot 03 in the said Plan No. 7195,
West : by the Road. 

Containing in extent Fifteen Perches (00A., 00R., 15.0P.) 
together with the buildings, plantations and everything 
standing thereon and appertaining thereto.

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

06-1099
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the DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC

Under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed on the 
30th May, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC Bank 
PLC

Board Resolution

Rajasekara Waduge Nesli Ranjith alias Nesli Ranjith 
Rajasekara, Loku Rajasekara Waduge Lal Ananda and Loku 
Rajasekara Waduge Nihal Priyantha Rajasekara of Yakkala, 
Gampaha (hereinafter referred to as the Partners’) carrying 
on business under the name style and firm of Gayan Gold 
House at Yakkala has made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond Number 1199 dated 18.05.2017 attested by 
Ruwanthi Fonseka, Notary Public in favour of the DFCC 
Bank PLC.

And whereas there is as at 31st of January, 2018 
due and owing from the said Rajasekara Waduge Nesli 
Ranjith alias Nesli Ranjith Rajasekara, Loku Rajasekara 
Waduge Lal Ananda and Loku Rajasekara Waduge 
Nihal Priyantha Rajasekara of Gayan Gold House to 
the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
No. 1199 a sum of Rupees Five Million Six Hundred and 
Forty-nine Thousand Four Hundred and Eighty-four and 
Cents Seventy (Rs. 5,649,484.70) together with interest 
thereon from 01st of February 2018 to the date of sale 
on a sum of Rupees Three Million (Rs. 3,00,000) at the 
rate of Eight Decimal Five per centum (8.5%) per annum 
above AWPR 4 week average reviewed monthly on first 
working day of the month, And on a sum of Rupees 
Two Million Two Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Seventy-four and cents Seventy  
(Rs. 2,299,874.70) at a rate of interest calculated at 
Twenty-eight per centum (28%) per annum.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land and building described 
below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid 
Mortgage Bond No. 1199 by Rajasekara Waduge Nesli 
Ranjith alias Nesli Ranjith Rajasekara of Gayan Gold 
House be sold by Public Auction by Messers. Schokman 
& Samerawickrema, Licensed Auctioneers of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Five Million 
Six Hundred and Forty-nine Thousand Four Hundred 

and Eighty-four and cents Seventy (Rs. 5,649,484.70) 
together with interest thereon from 01st of February, 
2018 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Three Million 
(Rs. 3,00,000) at the rate of Eight Decimal Five per 
centum (8.5%) per annum above AWPR 4 week average 
reviewed monthly on first working day of the month, 
and on a sum of Rupees Two Million Two Hundred and 
Ninety-nine Thousand Eight Hundred and Seventy-four 
and cents Seventy (Rs. 2,299,874.70) at a rate of interest 
calculated at Twenty Eight per centum (28%) per annum 
or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of 
sale together with the cost of advertising and selling the 
said land and premises and all monies expended and costs 
and other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in 
accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the recovery of loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) act No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged by 
Mortgage Bond No. 1199

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1114 dated 20.09.2008 made 
by R. K. P. Ranaweera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Bandarawatta Estate together with the buildings 
and everything else standing thereon bearing assessment  
No. 107, Vijitha Mawatha, situated at Gampaha Aluthgama 
within the Gramasewa Division of No. 225, Aluthgama 
East and Divisional Secretariat Division of Gampaha 
within the Limits of Gampaha Municipal Council in Meda 
Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by 
Land of Patrick Alahakoon, on the East by Land of Patrick 
Alahakoon (Lot 28 in the said Plan No. 32), on the South by 
Road (P. S.) and on the West by Land of Dayaratne Rodrigo 
(Lots 32 & 27 in the said Plan No. 32) and containing in 
extent Twenty-two decimal Two Four perches (0A., 0R., 
22.24P.) as per the said Plan No. 1114.

Which said allotment of land marked Lot 1 depicted in 
the said Plan No. 1114 described above is a Re-survey of the 
Land described below:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 331 dated 03.09.1989 made 
by E. M. T. Ekanayake, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called Bandarawatta Estate together with the buildings 
and everything else standing thereon situated at Gampaha 
Aluthgama within the Limits of Aluthgamperuwa Unit of 
Gampaha Pradeshiya Sabha in Meda Pattu of Siyane Korale 
in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said 
Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Land of Petrick Alahakoon 
(Lot 28 in the said Plan No. 32). on the East by Land of 
Petrick Alahakoon (Lot 28 in the said Plan No. 32) and Land 
of S. K. Weerasena (Lot 29 in the said Plan No. 32), on the 
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South by Road - 20 feet wide (Lot 5 in the said Plan No. 32) 
and on the West by Land of Dayaratne Rodrigo (Lots 32 & 
27 in the said Plan No. 32) and containing in extent Twenty-
two Decimal Two Four Perches (0A., 0R., 22.24P.) as per 
the said Plan No. 331 and registered at the Land Registry, 
Gampaha.

Together with the right of way in over and along the 
Road reservations depicted in the said Plan No. 1114 held 
and possessed under and by Virtue of Deed No. 284 dated 
17.10.1989 attested by A. Lanton Silva, N. P. 

	L akshman Silva, 
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3

06-1097

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 07.02.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

It is hereby resolved:

1. That a sum of Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and 
Twenty-eight Thousand Two Hundred and Seventeen and 
cents Ninety-one (Rs. 6,628,217.91) on the Permanent 
Overdraft facility and sum of Rupees Three Million Three 
Hundred and Forty-six Thousand Ninety-one and cents 
Fifty-eight (Rs. 3,346,091.58) on Loan facility are due 
from Mr. Rafeekdeen Mohomed Zakeer sole Proprietor of 
A. R. S. Hardware, No. 366, 6th Mile Post, Kandy Road, 
Mawathagama on account of principal and interest up to 
11.12.2017 and together with further interest on Permanent 
Over Draft Facility of Rupees Four Million Six Hundred 
Thousand (Rs. 4,600,000.00) at the rate of Seventeen per 
centum (17.00%) per annum from 12.12.2017 and Capital 
Outstanding of Loan Facility of Rupees Two Million Four 
Hundred and Four Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety-
seven (Rs. 2,404,997.00) at the rate of 16.00% (Sixteen per 
centum) per annum from 12.12.2017 till date of payment 
on Mortgage Bond No. 2922 dated 24.03.2014 atteted by 
R. M. K. S. M. Rathnayake, Notary Public and Mortgage 
Bond No. 3201 dated 31.10.2014 attested by R. M. K. S. M. 
Rathnayake, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. H. W. Asoka 
Jayalal, the Auctioneer of No. 33, Thalgodapitiya Mawatha,  
Malkaduwawa, Kurunegala be authorized and empowered 
to sell by public auction, the property mortgaged to the 
Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedule hereunder 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Nine Million 
Nine Hundred and Seventy-four Thousand Three Hundred 
and Nine and cents Forty-nine (Rs. 9,974,309.49) for both 
facilities due on the said Mortgage Bond No. 2922 dated 
24.03.2014 and Mortgage Bond No. 3201 dated 31.10.2014 
together with interest as aforesaid from 12.12.2017 to date 
of sale and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 
of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Manager, 
Mawathagama Branch of Bank of Ceylon, to publish notice 
of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance.

the Schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 162 dated 07.05.1983 made by 
T. B. Attanayake, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Siyambalagahamula Hena now Watta and Wewagedaraya 
Hena now Watta” situated at Meetenwala, Pallegama now 
known as Kiwula Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
697, Mawathagama in the Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Mawathagama Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Mawathagama 
in Weudawilli Hatpattu of Gandahaye Korale in the District 
of Kurunegala North Western Province and which said Lot 1 
is bounded on the North by Wire and Live Fence separating 
Hena now watta claimed by J. A. Tikiri Appu Naide and 
Other, on the East by Road from Mawathagama to Seegiris 
Watta, on the South by Lot 2 in said Plan No. 162, on the 
West by Main Road from Meetenwela to Mawathagama 
and containing in extent One Rood and One Perch  
(0A., 1R., 1.0P.) together with trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon. Registered in A 1806/217 
at the Kurunegala Land Registry

Which said Land is now depicted as Lot 1 depicted 
in Plan No. 5153 dated 06.10.2013 made by D. M. P. B. 
Rambukwella, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Siyambalagahamula Hena now Watta and Wewagedaraya 
Hena now Watta” situated at Meetenwala, Pallegama now 
known as Kuwula Village aforesaid and which said Lot 1 
is bounded on the North by Hena now Watta claimed by 
J. A. Tikiri Appu Naide and Other, on the East by Road 
from Mawathagama to Seegiris Watta, on the South by Lot 
2 in said Plan No. 162 claimed by Jayaweera, on the West 
by Main Road from Meetenwala to Mawathagama and 
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containing in extent One Rood and One Perch (0A., 1R., 
1.0P.) together with trees, plantations and everything else 
standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mr. L. M. R. P. Ariyaratne,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Mawathagama.

06-1131

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 14.03.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

It is hereby resolved:

1. That a sum of Rupees Five Million and Ninety-four 
Thousand Two Hundred and Ninety-one and cents Eighty-
five (Rs. 5,094,291.85) on Permanent Overdraft facility 
and Rupees Five Million Four Hundred and Seventy-eight 
Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty-five and cents Thirty-
three (Rs. 5,478,655.33) on Loan facility are due from  
Mr. Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Sisira Kumara Ekanayake 
and Mrs. Samarakoon Mudiyanselage Chandima Lakmali 
Samarakoon and Mrs. Athapattu Mudiyanselage Renuka 
Kumari Gunathilake No. 16, Mahagama, Melsiripura on 
account of principal and interest up to 08.01.2018 and together 
with further interest on balance Principal of Permanent Over 
Draft Facility of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred Thousand  
(Rs. 2,600,000.00) at the rate of (17.00%) Seventeen per 
centum per annum from 09.01.2018 and balance principal 
of Loan facility of Rupees Five Million and Twenty-six 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-nine and cents 
Ninety-four (Rs. 5,026,729.94) at the rate of 12.5% (Twelve 
decimal Five per centum) per annum from 09.01.2017 
till date of payment on Mortgage Bond No. 10470 dated 
03.08.2006 attested by E. Kularathne, Notary Public, 
Mortgage Bond No. 12143 dated 08.12.2007 attested by  
E. Kularathne, Notary Public Mortgage Bond No. 14601 
dated 24.09.2010 attested by E. Kularathne, Notary Public 
and Bond No. 2414 dated 17.07.2012 attested by R. M. K. 
S. M. Rathnayake, Notary Pubilc.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Messrs Schokman 
and Samerawickreme, the Auctioneer of No. 24, Torrington 

Road, Kandy be authorized and empowered to sell by public 
auction, the property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and 
described in the Schedule hereunder for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Ten Million Five Hundred and Seventy-
two Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty-seven and cents 
Eighteen (Rs. 10,572,947.18) for overdraft facility and Loan 
facility are due on the said No. 10470 dated 03.08.2006 
attested by E. Kularathne, Notary Public, Mortgage Bond 
No. 12143 dated 08.12.2007 attested by E. Kularathne, 
Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 14606 dated 24.09.2010 
attested by E. Kularathne, Notary Public and Bond No. 2414 
dated 17.07.2012 attested by R. M. K. S. M. Rathnayake, 
Notary Public together with interest as aforesaid from 
09.01.2018 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance that 
the Manager, Melsiripura Branch of Bank of Ceylon, to 
publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

the Schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 9 depicted in Plan No. 1762 dated 14.12.2002 made 
by H. Wijayathunga, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kahatagahamula alias Polgahamula Landa” situated at 
Wetakeyapotha Village within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Pussallagama in the Divisional Secretary’s Division 
of Ibbagamuwa within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Ibbagamuwa in Hiriyala Hathpattu of Hetahaye Korale in 
the District of Kurunegala North Western Province and 
which said Lot 9 is bounded on the North by Lot 2, 3, 4, 5 
and 6 in the said Plan, East by Lot 7 in the said Plan, South 
by Lot 10 in the said Plan, West by Lot 1 in the said Plan 
and containing in extent Twenty-five decimal Two Perches 
(0A., 0R., 25.2P.) or 0.06374 Hectare together with trees, 
plantation and everything standing thereon and together 
with the right to use the road depicted as Lot 1 in the said 
Plan No. 1762. Registered in B 863/119 at the Land Regisry 
of Kurunegala.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
as Lot 10 depicted in Plan No. 1762 dated 14.12.2002 made 
by H. Wijayathunga, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kahatagahamula alias Polgahamulalanda” situated at 
Wetakayapotha Village aforesaid and which said Lot 10 is 
bounded according to the said Plan No. 1762, on the North 
by Lot 9 in the said Plan, East by Lot 7 in the said Plan, 
South by Lot 11 in the said Plan, West by Lot 1 in the said 
Plan and containing in extent Twenty-five decimal Two 
Perches (0A., 0R., 25.2P.) and together with trees, plantation 
and everything standing thereon. And together with the right 
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to use the road depicted as Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 1762. 
Registered in B 863/123 at the Land Registry of Kurunegala.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mr. K. G. T. Bandara,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Melsiripura.

06-1130

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 02.04.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

It is hereby resolved:

1. That a sum of Rupees Six Million Five Hundred and 
Seventeen Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty-seven and 
cents Seventy-three (Rs. 6,517,267.73) on the Permanent 
Overdraft facility and Rupees Two Million Three Hundred 
and Fifty-one Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty and 
cents Fifty-eight (Rs. 2,351,530.58) on 1st Loan facility  
and Rupees Two Million One Hundred and Ninety-five 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety and cents Seventy-
eight (Rs. 2,195,990.78) on 2nd Loan Facility are due from 
Mr. Mohamed Jawfer Mohamed Siham alias Mohamed 
Jawfer Mohamed Hisam of No. 7/7, Poles Road, Puttalam 
on account of principal and interest up to 08.03.2018 
and together with further interest on balance principal 
of Permanent Overdraft Facility of Rupees Five Million 
(Rs. 5,000,000.00 at the rate of 17.00% (Seventeen Per 
Centum) per annum from 09.03.2018 and balance principal 
of 1st Loan Facility of Rupees Two Million One Hundred 
Thousand (Rs. 2,100,000.00) at the rate of 16% (Sixteen Per 
Centum) per annum from 09.03.2018 and balance principal 
of 2nd Loan Facility of Rupees One Million Nine Hundred 
and Sixty-six Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-five  
(Rs. 1,966,665.00) at the rate of 16% (Sixteen Per Centum) 
per annum from 09.03.2018 till date of payment on Mortgage 
Bond No. 3765 dated 07.12.2015 attested  by R. M. K. S. 
M. Rathnayake, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 442 
dated 17.05.2017 attested by J. M. R. N. L. Gunathilake, 
Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. H. W. Asoka 
Jayalal, the Auctioneer of No. 33, Thalgodapitiya Road,  
Malkaduwawa, Kurunegala be authorized and empowered 
to sell by public auction, the property mortgaged to the 
Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedule hereunder 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Eleven Million 
and Sixty-four Thousand and Seven Hundred and Eighty-
nine and cents Nine (Rs. 11,064,789.09) for Overdrafts 
facility and Loan facilities due on the said Mortgage Bond 
No. 3765 dated 07.12.2015 attested by R. M. K. S. M. 
Rathnayake, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 442 
dated 17.05.2017 attested by J. M. R. N. L. Gunathilake, 
Notary Public together with interest as aforesaid from 
09.03.2018 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section 26 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance that 
the Branch Manager of Puttalam Branch of Bank of Ceylon, 
to publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of 
the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

the Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 835 dated 09.07.2008 made by 
M. O. M. Najeeb, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Udayarkulam, Udachchi Kulam, Malayappan Kulam and 
Wasteland situated at Anuradhapura Road in Puttalam Town 
in Puttalam Gravette within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Puttalam East 617/B, within the Divisional Secretary’s 
Division of Puttalam within the Urban Council Limits 
of Puttalam in the District of Puttalam North Western 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North 
by Land belonging to Abdul Rasik, on the East by Lane  
No. 4, Anuradhapura Road, on the South by Land belonging 
to Farook and on the West by Land belonging to Farook 
and containing in extent Eighteen decimal Three Perches  
(0A., 0R., 18.3P.) and together with trees, plantations, 
building and everything standing thereon.

Which said Land is a Resurvey of the Land described 
below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land called 
Udayarkulam, Udachchi Kulam, Malayappan Kulam and 
West Land situated at Anuradhapura Road in Puttalam Town 
in Puttalam Gravets within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Puttalam East 617/B within the Divisional Secretary’s 
Division of Puttalam within the Urban Council Limits of 
Puttalam in the District of Puttalam North Western Province 
and which said Land is bounded on the North by Land 
belongs to Basheer, on the East by Road leading from 
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Anuradhapura Road to Kadamayan Kulam Wawun, on 
the South by Balance Portion belonging to H. H. Samsul 
Hussein and on the West by Balance Portion belonging to H. 
H. Samsul Hussein and containing in extent North to South 
One Hundred Feet (100') and East to West Fifty feet (50') 
and together with trees, plantations, building and everything 
standing thereon. Registered in A 60/11 at Puttalam Land 
Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mr. M. Jesudasan,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Puttalam.

06-1129

bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as Amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 02.05.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

1. That a sum of Rupees Nine Million Two Hundred and 
Thirty-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy-one and 
cents Twenty-three (Rs. 9,239,671.23) on the Permanent 
Overdraft facility and sum of Rupees Seven Million Two 
Hundred Thousand (Rs. 7,200,000.00) as at 05.12.2016 
together with further interest on capital outstanding 
of Rupees Seven Million Two Hundred Thousand  
(Rs. 7,200,000.00) at the rate of 17% (Seventeen per 
centum) per annum, is due from Mr. Sisira Kumara Gamini 
Sarathchandra and Mrs. Diyagu Badathuruge Chandima 
de Silva, both of No. 4/1B-1/1, Devaraja Mawatha, 
Bothalapitiya, Gampola from 06.12.2016 till date of 
payment on Mortgage Bond No. 8335 dated 22.04.2014 
attested by Mr. L. S. Athauda, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments, M/s Schokman 
and Samarawickrama Auctioneers of No. 24, Torrington 
Road, Kandy be authorized and empowered to sell by Public 
Auction, the property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon as 
described in the Schedule hereunder for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Nine Million Two Hundred and Thirty-
nine Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy-one and cents 
Twenty-three only (Rs. 9,239,671.23) due on the said Bond 
No. 8335 dated 22.04.2014 attested by Mr. L. S. Athauda, 
Notary Public together with the interest as aforesaid from 
06.12.2016 to date of sale and costs and monies recoverable 
under Section 26 of the bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that 

the Senior Manager of Gampola Super Grade Branch of the 
Bnak of Ceylon to publish notice of the resolution in terms 
of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

the Schedule
 

1. All that divided allotment of land marked Lot 7 
depicted in Plan No. 1828 dated 24.07.1999 made by  
S. M. Abeyrathne, Licensed Surveyor being a portion of the 
land called Botalapitiya Watta bearing Assessment No. 4, 
Devaraja Mawatha situated at Kahatapitiya in Ward No. 1 in 
Grama Niladhari Division Bothalapitiya 1109 in Divisional 
Secretariat of Udapalatha within the town in Urban Council 
Limits of Gampola in Ganga Pahala Korale of Udapalatha 
in the Registration Division of Gampola in the District 
of Kandy Central Province and the said Lot 7 containing 
in extent of Fourteen decimal Naught Five Perches  
(0A., 0R., 14.05P.) or 0.03554 Hec. and is bounded on 
the North by Lots 2, 3, 5 and 6 in the said Plan No. 1828, 
East by premises bearing Assessment No. 10B and 10C 
Parathota  Road, South by the live fence and wire fence 
separating Bathalawatta and West by the live fence and wire 
fence separating the remaining portion bearing Assessment 
No. 4/5, Devaraja Mawatha together with the soil, trees, 
plantations and everything thereon and the right to draw 
water from the well marked Lot 6 in the said Plan No. 1828 
in common with other authorized users and registered in  
E 24/04 at Gampola Land Registry.

2. The Right of way and means of access unto the Donee 
and her aforewritten in common with other authorized users 
in over accross and along the Eight Feet access marked Lot 
3 depicted in the aforesaid Plan No. 1828 being a portion 
of the land called Bothalapitiya Watta bearing Assessment 
No. 4, Devaraja Mawatha situated at Kahatapitiya aforesaid 
and the said Lot 3 containing in extent of One decimal Four 
Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 1.40P.) or 0.00354 Hec. and is 
bounded as per the said Plan No. 1828, on the North by Lot 
1, East by Lot 4, 5 and 6, South by Lot 7 and West by Lot 2 
and together with common right of way over Lot 1 in Plan 
No. 1828 which reserved for 8 feet wide road and Registered 
in C178/37 at the land Registry, Gampola.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 E. M. D. S. Ekanayake,
	 Senior Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Super Grade Branch,
Gampola.

06-1128
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bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as Amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974

at a meeting held on 02.05.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

It is hereby resolved:
That a sum of Rupees Seven Million Two Hundred and 

Ninety-one Thousand Nine Hundred and Seven and cents 
Thirty-nine (Rs. 7,291,907.39) on the Permanent Overdraft 
facility and sum of Rupees Four Million and Seventy-
one Thousand Two Hundred and Twenty-three and cents 
Thirty-nine (Rs. 4,071,223.39) on loan facility are due from  
Mr. Wijesundara Mudiyanselage Dammika Prasanna 
Kumara and Mrs. Siriwardhana Mudiyanselage Lilani 
Nadeesha Siriwardhana both of Kajulandawaththa, 
Kivulgalla, Metiyagane and Mr. Rathugamage Roshan Prive 
Benildus Fernando, Ginigasma Road, Katuneriya on account 
of principal and interest up to 10.04.2018 and together with 
further interest on Permanent Over Draft Facility of Rupees 
Five Million (Rs. 5,000,000.00) at the rate of 17.00% 
(Seventeen Per centum) per annum from 11.04.2018 and 
Capital Outstanding of Loan Facility of Rupees Two Million 
Eight Hundred and Fifty Thousand (Rs. 2,850,000.00) 
at the rate of 16.00% (Sixteen per centum) per annum 
from 11.04.2018 till date of payment on Mortgage Bond  
No. 3229 dated 18.11.2014 and Mortgage Bond  
No. 3432 dated 31.03.2015 both attested by R. M. K. S. M. 
Rathnayake, Notary Public.

That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments, Schokman and 
Samarawickrama Auctioneer of No. 24, Torrington Road, 
Kandy be authorized and empowered to sell by Public 
Auction, the property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon 
as described in the Schedule hereunder for the recovery 
of the said sum of Rupees Eleven Million Three Hundred 
and Sixty-three Thousand One Hundred and Thirty and 
cents Seventy-eight (Rs. 11,363,130.78) for both facilities 
due on the said Mortgage Bond No. 3229 dated 18.11.2014 
and Mortgage Bond No. 3432 dated 31.03.2015 together 
with interest as aforesaid from 11.04.2018 to date of sale 
and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Manager, 
Narammala Branch of Bank of Ceylon, to publish notice of 
this resolution in terms  of Section 21 of the said Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance.

the Schedule
 

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 7340 dated  07.06.2014 made by                        
W. S. I. Wickramasingha,  Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Madangahawatta” situated at Ulhitiyawa village 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of 492 - Ulhitiyawa in 
the Divisional Secretary’s Division of Wennappuwa within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wennappuwa in Pitigal 
Korale South of Kammal Pattu in the District of Puttalam of 
the North Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North by Land of Dharmadasa Samarasingha, 
Land of Jayanthi Lowe and Land of W. M. R. A. Perera, 
on the East by Vidyala Mawatha, on the South by Road, 
on the West by Lot 1 in Plan No. 4388 and containing in 
extent One Rood and Twenty Four Decimal Four Perches                                           
(0A., 1R., 24.4P.) together with trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of the land described 
below;

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 2 in Plan No. 4388 dated  20.08.1960 made by                             
N. F. Warnakulasuriya,  Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Madangahawatta” situated at Ulhitiyawa village within 
the Grama Niladhari Division of 492 - Ulhitiyawa in the 
Divisional Secretary’s Division of Wennappuwa within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wennappuwa in Pitigal Korale 
South of Kammal Pattu within the Registration Division of 
Marawila in the District of Puttalam of the North Western 
Province and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by 
Land of Dharmadasa Samarasingha, Land of Jayanthi Lowe 
and Land of W. M. R. A. Perera, on the East by Vidyala 
Mawatha, on the South by Road, on the West by Lot 1 in 
said Plan and containing in extent One Rood and Twenty 
Four Decimal Four Perches (0A., 1R., 24.4P.) together with 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon. 
Registered in G 102/111 at the Marawila Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon,

	 Mrs. A. A. A. K. Abeysinghe,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Narammala.

06-1133
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the DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC Under Section 4 of the recovery of loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of section 8 of the recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 19th February, 2018 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC

Board Resolution

Whereas Mr. Wipulasuriyage Hasantha Sudeer Wipulasuriya 
of “Harvest The Kamhala” of Balangoda (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Borrower’) have made default in payments 
due on Mortgage Bond No. 337 dated 19th October, 2009 
and attested by Kenneth G. De Silva Notary Public of 
Bandarawela, Mortgage Bond No. 501 dated 04th October, 
2010 and attested by Kenneth G. De Silva, Notary Public 
of Bandarawela, Mortgage Bond No. 819 dated 21st May 
2012 and attested by Kenneth G. De Silva, Notary Public 
of Bandarawela, Mortgage Bond No. 985/1416/645 dated 
12th February, 2013 and attested by Kenneth G. De Silva 
Notary Public of Bandarawela, dated 21st February 2013 
and attested by W. A. D. V. Wanasinghe, Notary Public 
of Colombo and dated 28th February, 2013 and attested 
by C. P. W. Meegahawela, Notary Public of Colombo and 
Mortgage Bond No. 1265/443/2251 dated 04th March, 
2014 and attested by Kenneth G. De Silva, Notary Public of 
Bandarawela, dated 07th of March, 2014 and attested by N. 
S. Ranathunga, Notary Public of Colombo dated 12th March, 
2014 and attested by Ranthie Jayanika Wanniarachchi, 
Notary Public of Colombo in favour of the DFCC Bank 
PLC.

And Whereas there is as at 31st August, 2017 due and 
owing from the said Mr. Wipulasuriyage Hasantha Sudeer 
Wipulasuriya of “Harvest the Kamhala” to the DFCC Bank 
PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos 337, 501, 819, 
985/1416/645 and 1265/443/2251 a sum of Rupees Twenty 
-two Million Three Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand 
Three Hundred and Eighty and Cents Thirty Three  
(Rs. 22,399,380.33) together with interest thereon from 01st 
September, 2017 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Two 
Million Four Hundred and Four Thousand Two Hundred 
and Six (Rs. 2,404,206.00) at a rate of interest calculated at 
Seven per centum (7.0%) per annum above the higher of the 
following base rates

(i) The Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which rate will be revised every Three Months on the first 
business day in the months of January, April, July and 
October of each year

or
	
(ii) The Average 91 date Treasury Bill Rate net of 

Withholding Tax which rate will be revised every Three 
months on the first business day in the months of January, 
April, July and October of each year;

On a sum of Rupees Eight Hundred and Sixteen Thousand 
Five Hundred and Twenty-two (Rs. 816,522.00) at a rate of 
interest calculated at Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum 
above the higher of the following base rates

(i) The Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which rate will be revised every Three Months on the first 
business day in the months of January, April, July and 
October of each year

or

(ii) The Average 91 date Treasury Bill Rate net of 
Withholding Tax which rate will be revised every Three 
months on the first business day in the months of January, 
April, July and October of each year;

on a sum of Rupees Nine Hundred and Fifty Eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty (Rs. 958,750.00) at 
a rate of Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum above the 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) which 
will be revised on the first business day of each month on a 
sum of Rupees One Million Five Hundred and Thirty-three 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-nine (Rs. 1,533,939.00) 
at a rate of Eight decimal five per centum (8.5%) per annum 
above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which be revised on the first business day of each month ; on 
a sum of Rupees Eight Million Five Hundred and Seventy 
Thousand  (Rs. 8,570,000.00) at a rate of Seven decimal five 
per centum (7.5%) per annum above the Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) which will be revised on the 
first business day of each month and on a sum of Rupees 
One Million Two Hundred and Seventy-one Thousand 
Twenty-eight and cents Sixty-six (Rs. 1,271,028.66) at a 
rate of Fourteen per centum (14%) per annum

And Whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) act No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land, premises and Machinery 
described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the 
aforesaid Mortgage bond Nos. 337, 501, 819, 985/1416/645 
and 1265/443/2251 by Mr. Wipulasuriyage Hasantha Sudeer 
Wipulasuriya of “Harwest the Kamhala” of Balangoda be 
sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasooriya licensed 
auctioneers of Kandy for the recovery of the said Rupees 
Twenty-two Million Three Hundred and Ninety-nine 
Thousand Three Hundred and Eighty and Cents Thirty-three 
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(Rs.22,399,380.33) together with interest thereon from 01st 
September, 2017 to the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Two 
Million Four Hundred and Four Thousand Two Hundred 
and Six (Rs. 2,404,206.00) at a rate of interest calculated at 
Seven per centum (7.0%) per annum above the higher of the 
following base rates

(i) The Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which rate will be revised every Three  months on the first 
business day in the months of January, April, July and 
October of each year

or

(ii) The Average 91 date Treasury Bill Rate  net of 
Withholding Tax which rate will be revised every Three 
months on the first business day in the months of January, 
April, July and October of each year;

On a sum of Rupees Eight Hundred and Sixteen Thousand 
Five Hundred and Twenty-two (Rs. 816,522.00) at a rate of 
interest calculated at Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum 
above the higher of the following base rates

(i) The Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which rate will be revised every Three months on the first 
business day in the months of January, April, July and 
October of each year

or

(ii) The Average 91 date Treasury Bill Rate net of 
withholding tax which rate will be revised every Three 
months on the first business day in the months of January, 
April, July and October of each year;

On a sum of Rupees Nine Hundred and Fifty-eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty (Rs. 958,750.00) at 
a rate of Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum above the 
Average weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) which will 
be revised on the first business day of each month; on a 
sum of Rupees One Million Five Hundred and Thirty-three 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-nine (Rs. 1,533,939.00) 
at a rate of Eight decimal five per centum (8.5%) per annum 
above the average weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
which wil be revised on the first business day of each 
month on a sum of Rupees Eight Million Five Hundred 
and Seventy Thousand (Rs. 8,570,000.00) at a rate of 
Seven decimal five per centum (7.5%) per annum above 
the average weighted prime lending rate (AWPR) which 
will be revised on the first business day of each month 
and on a sum of Rupees One Million Two Hundred and 
Seventy-one Thousand Twenty-eight and cents Sixty-six  
(Rs. 1,271,028.66) at a rate of Fourteen per centum (14%) 
per annum or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the 

time of sale together with the costs of advertising and selling 
the said land, premises and machinery described below and 
all monies expended and costs and other charges incurred 
by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the convenants 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of section 13 of 
the recovery of loans by banks (special provisions) Act,  
No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property and 
Machineries Mortgaged by Mortgage 

Bond Nos. 337, 501, 819, 985/1416/645 and 
1265/443/2251 

the first schedule

All that defined and divided allotment of land from and 
out of the land called “Tennapitahena” bearing Lot No. 
42 in B S P P No. 544 which is situated at Pinnawala in 
Uduwaggam Pattu of Kadawata Korale, in the Divisional 
Secretariat of Imbulpe, G. S. Division of Pinnawala 268A, 
Rathnapura District of the Province of Sabaragamuwa 
and bounded according to the said Plan on the North by 
Pinnawala Kadura, Lot No. 45 and foot path, on the East 
by Maha Ela, on the South & West by Land depicted in T. P.  
No. 424570 containing in extent Two Roods and Eleven Perches  
(00A., 02R., 11P.) and depicted in S O T P No. T 12270 
dated 27th May 1937 authenticated by L G O Woodhouse 
Surveyor General and together with the Tea factory, other 
building tools, Machinery, Fixtures, Furniture’s, trade 
utensils live and dead stock and everything appertaining 
thereto.

According to recent figure of Survey the said land is now 
described as follows:

All that defined and divided allotment of land from and 
out of the Land called “Tennapitahena” depicted as Lot No. 
1 in Plan No. 2785 surveyed on 18th September, 2006 and 
issued on 30th August 2007 made by E T P Perera L S which 
is situated at Pinnawala village in Uduwaggam Pattu of 
Kadawata Korale, in the Divisional Secretariat of Imbulpe, 
G. S. Division of Pinnawala 268A, Rathnapura District of the 
Province of Sabaragamuwa and bounded according to the 
said Plan on the North by Pinnawala Kadura, Lot No. 45 in 
F V P 544 and path, on the East by Path, Channel and Road, 
on the South by Land depicted in T P 424570 and on the 
West by Land depicted in T P 424570 and Pinnawala Kadura 
and containing in extent Two Roods and Eleven Perches 
(A00-R02-P11) together with the Tea factory, building and 
other buildings, machinery fixed in the Tea factory and all 
others appertaining to the Tea factory including Fixtures, 
Furnitures and fittings standing thereon and the Plantations 
and everything else standing thereon.
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The Second Schedule

Machinery installed

	 Serial No.	 Description	N o. of units

	 01	 Withering Troughs with fans 1:
		  Make	 :	 Razco Machining Works
		  Motor Power	 :	 3 HP
		  Dimension	 :	 50’ x 6’	 01
		F  an Diameter	 :	 38’’

	 02	 Withering Troughs with fans 2:
		  Make	 :	 Razco Machining Works
		  Motor Power	 :	 5.5 HP
		  Dimension	 :	 50’ x 6’	 02
		F  an Diameter	 :	 38’’

	 03	 Withering Troughs with fans 3:
		  Make	 :	I suru Engineering Works
		  Dimension	 :	 50’ x 6’	 01
		F  an Diameter	 :	 48’’

	 04	 Withering Troughs with fans 4:
		  Make	 :	I suru Engineering Works
		  Dimension	 :	 50’ x 6’	 02
		F  an Diameter	 :	 38’’

	 05	T ea Rollers:
		  Make	 :	 Marshall
		  Model	 :	 Double Action
		  Motor Power	 :	 10 HP	 03
		  Dimension	 :	 36’’

	 06	 Roll Breakers:
		  Make	 :	I suru Engineering Works	
		  Motor Power	 :	 2HP	 02
		  Dimension	 :	 4’ x 10’

	 07	 Chota Sifter:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Motor Power	 :	 3 HP	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 3’ x 5’

	 08	 Michi Sifters:
		  Motor Power	 :	 3 HP	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 3’ x 6’

	 09	 Michi Sifters:
		  Make	 :	 Kelani	 02
		  Motor Power	 :	 1 HP	

	 10	 Middleton Sifter:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Motor Power	 :	 3 HP	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 3’ x 6’
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	 11	 Middleton Sifter:
		  Make	 :	 Kelani	 02
		  Motor Power	 :	 2 HP

	 12	 Sirocco Drier:
		  Make	 :	 Sirocco
		  Model	 :	 Pressure Drier
		  Motor Power	 :	 10 HP - Main Fan & 2 HP ID Fan	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 4’
		  Country	 :	I reland

	 13	 Stalk Extractor:
		  Model	 :	 Electric Stalk Extractor - 3T Type	 02
		  Motor Power	 :	 1.5 HP

	 14	F ibre Extractor:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Motor Power	 :	 3 HP	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 4’ x 10’

	 15	T erry Nipper Breaker:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Motor Power	 : 	 1.1 HP	 01
		  Dimension	 :	 18’’

	 16	 Suction Winnower:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Motor Power	 : 	 5.5 HP	 01
		  Conveyer	 :	 0.18 Kva

	 17	 Dust Fans:			   02

	 18	 Colour Sorter:
		  Make	 :	 Senvec	 01
		  Capacity	 :	 3.7 kw
	
	 19	 Humidifiers:			   02

	 20	 Generator:
		  Make	 :	 Data Kom	 01
		  Capacity	 :	 150 KVA

	 21	T ea Rollers:
		  Make	 :	 CCC
		  Model	 :	 Single Action	 01
		  Motor Power	 :	 10 HP
		  Dimension	 : 	 36’’

	 22	 Bucket Elevators:
		  Make	 :	 Kelani	 02
		  Dimension	 :	 10 ft.

	 23	T ea Packer:
		  Make	 :	 Local	 01
		  Motor Power	 : 	 3 HP

	 Serial No.	 Description	N o. of units
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	 24	 Colour Sorter:
		  Make	 :	 Nanta.
		  Model	 :	 5000T
		  Serial No.	 :	 QT 021505009
		  Made by	 :	 DAEWON GSI Co. Ltd. (Korea)	 01
		  Date of Installation	 : 11.03.2005
		  Cameras	 :	 4 Cameras in Upper Stage and 4 Cameras in 
				    Lower Stage. (Each camera is of 2048 pixels)
		  Ejectors	 :	 192.nos.
		  Capacity	 :	 720 kg. per hour.

	L akshman Silva,
	 Chief Executive Officer.

DFCC Bank PLC,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

06-1098

	 Serial No.	 Description	N o. of units
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